
Vestavia Hills  
City Council Agenda 

October 12, 2015 
5:00 PM 

 

1. Call to Order  
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
4. Pledge Of Allegiance   
5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 
6. City Manager’s Report 
7. Councilors’ Reports 
8. Financial Reports – Melvin Turner III, Finance Director/City Treasurer 
9. Approval of Minutes –  September 14, 2015 (Regular Meeting)  

Old Business  

10. Ordinance Number 2600 – An Ordinance Establishing the Rocky Ridge Entertainment 
District  (public hearing continued from 9/28/2015 meeting) 

11. Resolution Number 4762 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute 
And Deliver An Agreement For A Multi-Jurisdictional APPLE Project To Study And 
Further Develop Improvement Plans For A Section Of Acton Road Near The Former 
Altadena Valley Country Club 

12. Ordinance Number 2602 – Rezoning – 513 Montgomery Highway; Lot 1, Resurvey Of 
Lots 4, 8, 9 10, 11 & 12, Fourth Addition To Beacon Hills; Rezone From Vestavia Hills 
R-2 (Medium Density Residential District) To B-2 (General Business District) With 
Future Limited Uses; City Of Vestavia Hills, Owner; Getra Sanders, CFA Development 
Manager, Representing 

13. Ordinance Number 2603 – Conditional Use Approval For A Home Occupation For 
Property Located At 3794 Poe Drive, S ½ Of Lot 4 And All Of Lot 3, Glass 3rd Add To 
New Merkle; Conditional Use Approval For A Home Occupation With One Fulltime 
And Two “Drop-In” Employees Who Do Not Reside On The Property; Jon Hinds, Owner 

14. Ordinance Number 2604 – Conditional Use Approval For A Home Occupation For 
Property Located At 4191 Vestview Drive, Liberty Park; Peggy Vanek-Titus, Owner 

15. Ordinance Number 2605 – Rezoning – 3127 Blue Lake Drive And 4565 Pine Tree Circle; 
Lot 10-A, Acton’s Resurvey Of Lot 8 Thru 10 And Lots 11 & 12, Topfield Subdivision; 



Rezone From Vestavia Hills R-1 (Low Density Residential District) To Vestavia Hills B-
1-2 (Planned Business District); Beth A. Holsenback, Kenneth Andrews And Pine Tree 
Partners, LLC, Owners 

16. Ordinance Number 2606 – Rezoning – 4209 Autumn Lane; Rezone From Vestavia Hills 
R-4 (Medium Density Residential District) To Vestavia Hills B-1 (Neighborhood 
Business District) With Uses Limited To Professional Office; Brent Martina And Tim 
Coker, Owners, John Whitson, Representing 

17. Ordinance Number 2607 – 3117 And 3121 Blue Lake Drive; Lots 29 & 30, Topfield 
Subdivision; Rezone From Vestavia Hills R-1 (Low Density Residential District) To 
Vestavia Hills O-1 (Office District); Slate Barganier Holdings, LLC And VGD On Blue 
Lake, LLC, Owners 

New Business  

18. Resolution Number 4764 – A Resolution Approving A Beer And Wine License For UAT 
Inc., D/B/A Cahaba Heights Texaco; Abid Ghani, Executive 

19. Resolution Number 4765 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver An Agreement With Alabama Department Of Transportation For 
Project Number ACAA59495-ATRP(006) ATRIP 37-03-34 

New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent)  

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

20. Ordinance Number 2608 – Rezoning & Conditional Use Approval – 4248, 4244, 4240, 
4232 Oakview Lane And 4325, 4321 And 4317 Dolly Ridge Road; Rezone From 
Vestavia Hills R-4, B-1 With Conditions, B-2 With Conditions, B-1.2, B-1.2 With 
Conditions And INST To Vestavia Hills B-1.2 With Conditional Use For 4-Story 
Building 

21. Citizens Comments  
22. Executive Session 
23. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
 September 28, 2015 

Page 1 
 

 

 CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

SEPTEMBER 28, 2015 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
The Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 
George Pierce  

      John Henley  
      Jim Sharp 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Wendy Appling, Deputy City Clerk 
      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Deputy Treasurer 
      Danny Rary, Police Chief 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
      Marvin Greene, Asst. Fire Chief 
      Terry Ray, Asst. Fire Chief 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
      Kevin York, Police Dept. 
      Scott Key, Fire Marshal 
      Jason Hardin, Police Dept. 
      Lori Beth Kearley, Asst. Engineer 
 
 Invocation was given by Karen Odle, President/CEO, Vestavia Hills Chamber of 
Commerce, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 

 
ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION, CANDIDATES 

 
• Mr. Ammons recognized Tommy Coggins, President of the Parks and Recreation 

Board. 
• Mr. Ammons announced the upcoming vacancy on the Parks and Recreation 

Board.  Applications can be obtained on October 12 in the Office of the City 
Clerk.  It is a 5-year term and a voluntary Board.  The Council will hold 
interviews in November. 



City Council Minutes 
 September 28, 2015 

Page 2 
 

 

• Mr. Pierce recognized Scott Perry, Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors. 
• The Mayor announced the upcoming vacancy on the Library Board.  Applications 

can be obtained on October 12 in the Office of the City Clerk.  It is a 4-year term 
and a voluntary Board.  The Council will hold interviews in November. 

PROCLAMATION 
 
 Mr. Ammons stated that October is Firefighter Appreciation Month and the 
Mayor presented Chief St. John with the proclamation. 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

1. None. 
 
 

COUNCILORS’ REPORTS 
 

2. None. 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
 Mr. Turner presented the financial reports for month ending August 2015.  He 
read and explained the balances. 
 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of September 14, 2015 (Regular Meeting) were presented for 
approval.   
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of September 14, 2015 

(Regular Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Henley and 
second by Mr.  Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
   Mayor Zaragoza –abstain   Motion carried. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2598 
 
Ordinance Number 2598 – Rezoning – Altadena Valley Country Club – Rezone 

from Jefferson County CC-1, A-1 and Shelby County E-1 to Vestavia 
Hills R-9, R-2, Inst, A and B-2; Nall Partnership, LLP, Owner, 



City Council Minutes 
 September 28, 2015 

Page 3 
 

 

Charles Beavers, Bradley Arant Boult Cummings LLP, Representing  
(public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2598 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Chris Eckroate, Gooodwyn, Mills and Cawood, Inc., explained that the 
property would be a mix of residential, commercial, recreational areas and a canoe 
launch.  Various studies and reports limit the use of the fields.  There will be bathrooms 
located on the property.  Grading will be limited and the entrance will be on Lakeland 
Trail. 
 
 Discussion ensued as to the elevation changes of the property, how the fields 
would drain and remain dry, large pine trees and if the dam would be reopened. 
 
 Mr. Eckroate stated that the elevation would be around 14’ to 6’; fields 
engineered to dry quickly and that they will attempt to save all large trees possible.  
There are no plans to open the dam area. 
 
 The Mayor explained that the City is looking at an “APPLE” grant to help with 
improvements along Acton Road and that it will be presented to the Council later in the 
meeting. 
 
 Mr. Brady explained that he is working with the County to see what 
improvements need to be made. 
 
 Mr. David Stovall, Engineering Design Group, explained that there will be 66 
residential lots with a gated entrance.  Three lots will be on Alta Vista Circle with a 
hammerhead turnaround.  Utilities are available and they will work in conjunction with 
the City.  The homes will be 3,500 to 4,500 square feet and range between $500,000 to 
$800,000, with lot sizes around 60’ to 120’ with flexibility in setbacks.  It will be single 
family residential development with sidewalks. 
 
 Mr. Sharp stated that Planning and Zoning Commissionrecommended the 
approval of the request. 
 
 Mr. Henley asked if the petition have to go back before the Council if the plans 
changed. 
 
 Mr. Boone stated that it would. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 The following individuals addressed the Council regarding this development: 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
 September 28, 2015 

Page 4 
 

 

 
 

• Ms. Betty Chivers, 2703 Altadena Lake Drive; 
• Kathleen Bishop, 2129 Viking Circle;  
• Jordon Huffstetler, 2600 Lakeland Trail; 
• Wes Kline, 2704 Altadena Lake Drive; 
• Linda Gauldin, 2700 Altadena Lake Drive; 
• Jonathon Sanders, 2731 Lakeland Trail; 
• Bobby Gusnard, 2352 Sumner Lane; 

 
Issues discussed included the proposed entrance on the western side of the 

AVCC; the gates before the spillway to be locked to keep people out of the area after 
dark; no trespass sign; maintenance during construction; traffic; allowing annexation of 
the residential properties to the City; lack of police protection; inadequate parking; kids 
bringing alcohol to the property; people frequenting the canoe launch; the proposed 400 
parking spaces at the recreation area; people using the existing streets for turnaround 
areas, police challenges, contingency plan should a park not develop, traffic lights on 
Acton Road. 
 
 The Mayor closed the floor and asked for the question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2599 
 
Ordinance Number 2599 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – Altadena Valley Country 

Club; Nall Partnership, LLP  (public hearing) 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2599 was by Mr. Pierce and second 

was by Mr. Henley. 
 
 Mr. Pierce stated the request came to us in March and researched the request and 
wanted to bring it before the Council for consideration. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   There being no one to 
address the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 



City Council Minutes 
 September 28, 2015 

Page 5 
 

 

   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2596 
 
Ordinance Number 2596 – Rezoning – 2308, 2312, 2320 Rocky Ridge Road; Rezone 

from Jefferson County A-1 to Vestavia Hills R-9; Carl A. Shaefer, Jr., 
Owner; Taylor Burton, Taylor Burton Homes, Representing  (public 
hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2596 was by Mr. Sharp and second 

was by Mr. Ammons. 
 
 Mr. Blake Pittman, 2753 Paden Trail, explained that they are proposing a 45 lot 
subdivision.  Proposed name of the subdivision is South Bend.  The lot sizes are on 
average 70’ wide by 150’ deep.  The minimum square footage of the homes will be 2800 
square feet and the price range will be mid $500,000 to upper $600,000. 
 
 Mr. Ammons asked if apartments would be placed on the property. 
 
 Mr. Pittman stated that there would not be apartments.  They will build single 
family residential homes. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked about the buffer and retention ponds. 
 
 Mr. Pittman explained that they would like for them to be aesthetically pleasing.  
If they are not, it is hard to sell houses. 
 
 Mr. Sharp said that Planning and Zoning unanimously approved the request. 
 
 Mr. Brady stated that he found no significant issues from the traffic study. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 The following individuals addressed the Council about the request: 
 

• Becky Davis, 2449 Jannebo Road; 
• Noel Whatley, 3401 Big Paul Circle; 
• Mike Wills, 3332 Wisteria Drive;  
• Tony Burton, 2340 Crossgate Trail; 
• Ms. Bobbi Gusnard, 2352 Sumner Lane;  

 
Issues included parking and elevation of entrance to subdivision; no commercial 

development on property; lighting from the subdivision to assist with security of the 
Wisteria Drive entrance and surrounding areas, traffic reports; school zoning for 
property; and turn lanes.  



City Council Minutes 
 September 28, 2015 

Page 6 
 

 

 
 There being no one else to address the Council concerning this request, the Mayor 
closed the floor and asked for the question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2597 
 
Ordinance Number 2597 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2308, 2312, 2320 Rocky 

Ridge Road; Carl A. Shaefer, Jr., Owner  (public hearing) 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2597 was by Mr. Pierce and second 

was by Mr. Henley. 
 
 Mr. Pierce stated that this was in the annexation study.  The Annexation 
Committee researched this and deemed that everything would be adequate to annex the 
property.  The Board is fully aware of annexations. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 There being no one to address the Council concerning this request, the Mayor 
closed the floor and asked for the question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2600 
 
Ordinance Number 2600 – An Ordinance Establishing the Rocky Ridge Road 

Entertainment District  (public hearing) 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2600 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Henley. 
 
 The Mayor discussed the Entertainment District and relayed to the audience that 
this has been in discussions for a year and a half.  A study was conducted and it was 
determined that the City could not have an entertainment district.  The City initiated a 
process with Hoover and the Legislature voted in the last session to allow Vestavia Hills 
and Hoover to establish an entertainment district.  Alabama law states that the City can 



City Council Minutes 
 September 28, 2015 

Page 7 
 

 

designate up to three districts and listed the requirements.  This will allow for 
entertainment and economic growth.  The original ordinance stated 9:00 a.m to 2:00 a.m. 
and in discussing this matter with others, it seems that this may be too long of a 
timeframe.   
 
 Mr. Ammons stated that it takes time to get approval for an ABC license and in 
this instance we are trying to make it more efficient. 
 
 Mr. Pierce stated that if the Entertainment District does not work then the Council 
can vote to remove it. 
 
 Chief Rary explained that from the Police standpoint, they do not have a problem 
with the ordinance as written.  He studied Montgomery and Birmingham.  The businesses 
the City would like to attract would not be a problem for the Police. 
 
 Mr. Henley stated that he would like to propose an amendment to change the 
time. 
 
MOTION Motion to amend Ordinance Number 2600 to change the time to Sunday –

Thursday from noon to 9:00 p.m. and Friday – Saturday from noon to 
11:00 p.m. and that if an event needs to have additional times, then they 
request a variance with the City Manager was by Mr. Henley and second 
was by Mr. Ammons. 

 
 Mr. Boone stated that there is no problem with amending the Ordinance, but he 
would like for it to be held over until the next meeting. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 The Mayor stated that this will be held over until the next meeting. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 Mr. Brian Malcolm, 2525 Aspen Cove Drive, stated that he is concerned with the 
Ordinance as written.  He would like a more restricted procedure than 365 days a year.  
He has concerns of traffic and noise from special events.  It creates a tailgating 
atmosphere.  Consumption of beverages does not have a time limit.  Someone could buy 
a beverage and linger in the District for hours after the timeframe for selling.   
 
 The Mayor explained that the timeframe is for the District, not for selling or 
consuming.  The timeframe means that the district is limiting the times for selling and 
consuming alcohol. 
 



City Council Minutes 
 September 28, 2015 

Page 8 
 

 

 Chief Rary stated that the District closes the timeframe for selling and consuming 
alcohol.  Every other law stays in effect during the operating times of the District 
including the noise ordinance and public intoxication. 
 
 Mr. Scott Perry, 2325 Hunters Cove, stated that he is currently representing the 
Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors.  The Board has discussed the issue and talked 
with business and property owners near the District and the response has been positive.  
The Board has voted on the issue and recommends the approval of the District.  The 
Board believes that this will bring businesses to the community. 
 
 Ms. Carol Crab, 1613 Glen Cove, stated that her house backs up to Andy’s 
Nursery.  She believes that the sidewalk will have many people using it.  She stated that 
her community has not known about the Entertainment District until this week and that 
no one has approached her subdivision about this.  She is concerned about the noise.  The 
neighborhood is already maintaining the fence and they would like input into this issue.  
Open containers near the High School are a concern. 
 
 Chief Rary stated that alcohol cannot be at the school.  It will only be in the 
district. 
 
 Mr. Robin Morgan stated that the business will strengthen the existing restaurants.  
He has apartments nearby there and does not think that the District will have any noise.  
If the District does not work, it can be looked at and retracted. 
 
 The Mayor stated that this has been discussed for a while and has been in the 
newsletter and The Voice and was on the last agenda as a first read. 
 
 There being no one else to address the Council concerning this request, the Mayor 
closed the floor and asked for the question. 
 
 

New Business  

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4758 
 
Resolution Number 4758 – A Resolution Accepting A Bid For Custodial Services 

For The City Center And The City Hall 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4758 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Henley. 
 
 Mr. Brady stated that this is a bid for custodial services for the City Hall.  He 
stated that we had four bids and this is the lowest bid. 
 
 Mr. Henley asked Mr. Boone if a 3-year agreement is applicable. 



City Council Minutes 
 September 28, 2015 

Page 9 
 

 

 
 Mr. Boone that said it is. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4759 
 
Resolution Number 4759 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute 

And Deliver An Agreement With The City Of Hoover, Alabama, For 
Participation In A Firefighter Recruit School To Be Conducted By 
The City Of Hoover’s Fire Department 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4759 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 
 
 Chief St. John explained that this will allow continued enrollment in Hoover’s 
class for $100.  Hoover requested the contract and he is presenting it to the Council.  Mr. 
Boone has reviewed and approved it. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4761 
 
Resolution Number 4761 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute 

And Deliver An Easement Agreement Dedicating An Easement On 
The Southern Line Of Lot 2, Resurvey Of Lots 4, 8, 9, 10, 11 & 12, 
Fourth Addition To Beacon Hills; City Of Vestavia Hills, Owner 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4761 was by Mr. Pierce and 

second was by Mr. Henley. 
 
 Mr. Brady stated that this is for the current sale of the Municipal Center property.  
This provides the ingress/egress easement for this property and the Fire Station #1 
property.   
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 



City Council Minutes 
 September 28, 2015 

Page 10 
 

 

   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (REQUESTING UNANIMOUS CONSENT) 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for unanimous consent for the immediate 
consideration and action on Resolution Numbers 4760 and 4763. 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for the immediate consideration and action 

on Resolution Numbers 4760 and 4763 was by Mr. Sharp and second was 
by Mr.  Henley.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4760 
 
Resolution Number 4760 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute 

And Deliver An Agreement With Goodwyn Mills And Cawood For 
Planning Services For The B.E. Care Entrance To The Altadena 
Valley Country Club 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4760 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Sharp. 
 
 Mr. Brady stated that this is for the planning services to look at access on the 
western side of Altadena Valley Country Club. 
 
 The Mayor explained that this will come out of the economic development budget 
for the City Manager. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4763 
 
Resolution Number 4763 - A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute 

And Deliver An Agreement For Professional Services For 
Programming And Schematic Layout Of A Proposed New Public 
Works Facility 

 



City Council Minutes 
 September 28, 2015 

Page 11 
 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4763 was by Mr. Pierce and 
second was by Mr. Ammons. 

 
 The Mayor said that this was discussed at the work session.  This will be for 
professional services for the new Public Works facility. 
 
 Mr. Boone stated that he has reviewed the agreement and is fine with the 
document. 
 
 The Mayor stated that this will come out of the capital budget. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting on 
October 12, 2015 at 5 PM. 

• Resolution Number 4762 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver An Agreement For A Multi-Jurisdictional APPLE Project 
To Study And Further Develop Improvement Plans For A Section Of Acton 
Road Near The Former Altadena Valley Country Club 

• Ordinance Number 2602 – Rezoning – 513 Montgomery Highway; Lot 1, 
Resurvey Of Lots 4, 8, 9 10, 11 & 12, Fourth Addition To Beacon Hills; Rezone 
From Vestavia Hills R-2 (Medium Density Residential District) To B-2 (General 
Business District) With Future Limited Uses; City Of Vestavia Hills, Owner; 
Getra Sanders, CFA Development Manager, Representing 

• Ordinance Number 2603 – Conditional Use Approval For A Home Occupation 
For Property Located At 3794 Poe Drive, S ½ Of Lot 4 And All Of Lot 3, Glass 
3rd Add To New Merkle; Conditional Use Approval For A Home Occupation 
With One Fulltime And Two “Drop-In” Employees Who Do Not Reside On The 
Property; Jon Hinds, Owner 

• Ordinance Number 2604 – Conditional Use Approval For A Home Occupation 
For Property Located At 4191 Vestview Drive, Liberty Park; Peggy Vanek-Titus, 
Owner 

• Ordinance Number 2605 – Rezoning – 3127 Blue Lake Drive And 4565 Pine 
Tree Circle; Lot 10-A, Acton’s Resurvey Of Lot 8 Thru 10 And Lots 11 & 12, 
Topfield Subdivision; Rezone From Vestavia Hills R-1 (Low Density Residential 
District) To Vestavia Hills B-1-2 (Planned Business District); Beth A. 
Holsenback, Kenneth Andrews And Pine Tree Partners, LLC, Owners 



City Council Minutes 
 September 28, 2015 

Page 12 
 

 

• Ordinance Number 2606 – Rezoning – 4209 Autumn Lane; Rezone From 
Vestavia Hills R-4 (Medium Density Residential District) To Vestavia Hills B-1 
(Neighborhood Business District) With Uses Limited To Professional Office; 
Brent Martina And Tim Coker, Owners; John Whitson, Representing 

• Ordinance Number 2607 – 3117 & 3121 Blue Lake Drive; Lots 29 & 30, 
Topfield Subdivision; Rezone From Vestavia Hills R-1 (Low Density Residential 
District) To Vestavia Hills O-1 (Office District); Slate Barganier Holdings, LLC 
And VGD On Blue Lake, LLC, Owners 

 
CITIZENS COMMENTS 

 
 None.  
 
MOTION Motion to adjourn was by Mr. Pierce and second was by Mr. Henley.  

Meeting adjourned at 7:53 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2600 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2600 
 

ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE ROCKY RIDGE 
ENTERTAINMENT DISTRICT  

 
WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

 
WHEREAS, Act 2012-438 as amended by Act 2013-382 now appearing as Section 28-

3A-17.1, Code of Alabama, 1975, authorized certain municipalities in the State of Alabama to 

establish entertainment districts within its corporate limits; and 

WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of Alabama enacted Act No. 2015-267,  which 

became law on May 27, 2015, to authorize the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama to establish no 

more than three (3) entertainment districts within the corporate City limits; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms and provisions and conditions of Act No. 2015-267, 

the City Council wishes to establish an entertainment district for the purpose of regulating the 

sale and consumption of alcoholic beverages as provided herein below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, as follows: 

SECTION 1.  Under the authority granted in Section 1 of Act No. 2015-267 of the 

Alabama Legislature, there shall be hereby established the Rocky Ridge Entertainment District 

with the areas and boundaries as set forth and designated in Exhibit A.  

SECTION 2.  Any licensee who receives an entertainment district designation for an on-

premise retail license from the Alabama Alcoholic Beverage Control Board shall comply with all 

laws, rules, and regulations which govern its license type, except that the patrons, guests or 

members of that licensee may exit that licensed premises with open containers of alcoholic 

beverages and consume alcoholic beverages anywhere within the confines of the entertainment 

district but may not enter another licensed premises with open containers or closed containers of 

alcoholic beverages acquired elsewhere. 

SECTION 3.  No licensee who receives an entertainment district designation shall allow 

alcoholic beverages to be removed from the licensed premises in bottles or glass containers. 

SECTION 4.  Except for special events as permitted by the Alabama Alcoholic Beverage 

Control Board and in compliance with all laws, rules, and regulations, no alcoholic beverages 



Ordinance Number 2600 
Page 2 

 
purchased outside of the district shall be allowed in open containers in the Entertainment 

District. 

SECTION 5.  Alcoholic beverages may be sold at licensed premises and consumed 

within the entertainment district designation boundaries during the following days and hours:   

Sunday through Thursday from Noon to 9:00 PM 

Friday and Saturday from Noon to 11:00 PM 

SECTION 6.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon passage, approval and 

publication or as otherwise. 

 DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 28th day of September, 

2015. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca H. Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby certify 
that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance Number 2600 is a true and correct copy of 
such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills on the 28th 
day of September, 2015, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, and 
Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



ROCKY RIDGE 
ENTERTAINMENT DISTRICT 
BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION 

 

Commence at the NE Corner of Lot 9 of Countrywood Trace Garden Homes as recorded Map 
Book167 Page 14  in the Probate of  Jefferson County, Alabama.  Located in NW ¼  of Section 
32 Township-18 South- Range 2 West.   

Thence run westerly along the northerly line of lots 9-8-7-6 and 5, to the Northwesterly corner of 
Lot 5 of the said Countrywood Trace Garden Homes. 

Thence turn and run southerly along the westerly line of lots 5-4-3-2 and 1 of the said 
Countrywood Trace Garden Homes to the south west corner of Lot 1 of the said Countrywood 
Trace Garden Homes.  Said point being on the northerly right of way line of Ridgedale Drive. 

Thence turn and run westerly along the said  northerly right of way line of Ridgedale Drive for a 
distance of 125 feet to a point on the said northerly right of way line, thence turn and run 
southerly across Ridgedale Drive to a point on the southerly right of way line of Ridgedale 
Drive.  Said point being the northeast corner of Lot 2B of a Resurvey of Lot 2 Rocky Ridge 
Estates as recorded in Map Book 159 Page 65 in the Probate Office of Jefferson County. 

Thence run southerly along the easterly line of the said Lot 2B to the Southeast corner of the said 
Lot 2B, thence turn and run westerly along the south line of Lot 2 B and Lot 2A to the 
Southwesterly corner of Lot 2A of the said resurvey of Lot 2 Rocky Ridge Estates.  Said Corner 
being on the easterly right of way line of Rocky Ridge Road. 

Thence run in a northwesterly direction across Rocky Ridge Road to a point on the Westerly 
right of way line of Rocky Ridge Road.  Said point being the southeast corner of a parcel of 
property as recorded in Deed Book 201416 Page 23608.  Thence run westerly along the south 
line of said parcel to the southwest corner of said parcel.  Said southwest corner of said parcel 
also being the Northeast corner of  Lot 21 of  The Glen of Vestavia as recorded in Map Book 211 
Page 56 in the probate office of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

Thence run westerly along the north line of lots 21-20-19-18-17 and 16 to the northwest corner 
of Lot 16 of said The Glen of Vestavia.  Thence turn and run northerly along the easterly line of 
lots 14-13 and 12 to the Northeast corner of Lot 12 of said The Glen of Vestavia. 

Thence turn and run westerly along the north line of  lots 12-11-10 and 9 to the Northwest corner 
of the said Lot 9 of said The Glen of Vestavia. Thence continue along the last described course 
for a distance of 112.55 feet to a point. Thence turn and run Northeasterly a distance of 330 feet 
more or less to a point located on the northerly right of way line of Morgan Drive.  Said point 
being the Southeasterly corner of a parcel of property as recorded in Deed Book 9808 Page 0905 
in the Probate Office of Jefferson County, Alabama.   

Exhibit A



Thence run northerly along the easterly line of the said parcel as recorded in said Deed Book 
9808 page 0905 for a distance of 896.91 feet more or less to a corner point on the said easterly 
line of said parcel. Thence turn and run easterly along the projected northerly property line of a 
parcel of property as recorded in Deed Book 200207 Page 8191 in the probate office of Jefferson 
County, Alabama a distance of 88.66 feet more or less to the northwesterly corner of said parcel 
as recorded in Deed Book 200207 Page 8191. Thence continue along the said northerly line of 
said parcel 180.30 feet more or less to a point.  Said point being the southwest corner of a parcel 
as recorded in Book 4445 Page 930. 

Thence run northerly along the westerly line of said parcel recorded in Book 4445 page 930 for a 
distance of 121.40 feet more or less to the northwest corner of said parcel.  Thence turn and run 
easterly along the northerly line of said parcel a distance of 238.1 feet more or less to the 
northeast corner of said parcel.  Said corner being on the westerly right of way line of Rocky 
Ridge Road.  Thence turn and run southerly along the westerly right of way of Rocky Ridge 
Road a distance of 139 feet more or less to the southeast corner of said parcel.  Said southeast 
corner of said parcel being the northeast corner of a parcel of property as recorded in deed book 
200207 Page 8191 in the Probate Office of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

Thence continue in a southerly direction along the westerly right of way line of said Rocky 
Ridge Road 121.12 feet to the southeasterly corner of said parcel as recorded in deed book 
200207 Page 8191. Said southeasterly corner of said parcel also being the northeasterly corner of 
a parcel of property as deeded in Deed Book 200206 Page7465 in the Probate Office of Jefferson 
County, Alabama. 

Thence continue in a southerly direction along the said westerly right of way of said Rocky 
Ridge Road for a distance of 120.94 feet to the southeast corner of said parcel as recorded in 
Deed Book 200206 Page7465. Said southeast corner also being the northeast corner of a parcel 
as recorded in Deed Book  200407 page 7258 in the Probate Office of Jefferson County, 
Alabama. 

Thence continue in a southerly direction along the said westerly right of way of Rocky Ridge 
Road for a distance of 131.55 feet to the southeast corner of said parcel recorded in Deed Book  
200407 page 7258. 

Thence turn and run southeasterly across Rocky Ridge Road to a point on the easterly right of 
way line of said Rocky Ridge Road.  Said point being the northwest corner of  Lot 2 Oak Park 
Plaza as recorded in Map Book 153 page 23. Thence continue along the northerly line of said Lot 
2 to the northeast corner of said Lot 2.  Said northeast corner also being the northwest corner of 
Lot 1-A Resurvey of Oak Park Plaza as recorded in Map Book 191 Page 19 in the Probate Office 
of Jefferson County, Alabama. Thence continue along the northerly line of said Lot 1-A to the 
northeast corner of said Lot 1-A.  thence turn and run southerly along the easterly line of said lot 
1-A to the southeast corner of said Lot 1-A. 

Thence continue along the last described course a distance of 66.0 feet more or less to the point 
of beginning. 
 

Exhibit A



 

Exhibit A







RESOLUTION NUMBER 4762 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER 

INTO A MULTIJURIDICTIONAL AGREEMENT WITH JEFFERSON 

COUNTY AND THE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION OF 

GREATER BIRMINGHAM FOR AN “APPLE” PROJECT TO STUDY 

AND FURTHER DEVELOP IMPROVEMENT PLANS FOR A SECTION 

OF ACTON ROAD NEAR THE FORMER ALTADENA VALLEY 

COUNTRY CLUB 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute and deliver an agreement with 

Jefferson County (“the County”) and the Regional Planning Commission of Greater 

Birmingham (“RPCGB”) for an Advanced Planning Program and Logical Engineering 

(“APPLE”) project; and 

2. A copy of said agreement is marked as “Exhibit A” attached to and incorporated into this 

Resolution Number 4762 with anticipated costs of RPCGB for $48,000 or 80%; Jefferson 

County as primary sponsor up to $12,000 (20%) and the City would reimburse Jefferson 

County up to $6,000 (10%) as a co-sponsor of the project; and 

3. Said project would be funded from the Capital Improvement Fund; and 

4. This Resolution Number 4762 is effective immediately upon adoption and approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 12
th

 day of October, 2015. 

 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4762



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4762



Ordinance Number 2602 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2602 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS R-
2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS B-2 WITH FUTURE LIMITED USES. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills R-2 (medium 

density residential district) to Vestavia Hills B-2 (general business district):  

513 Montgomery Highway 
Lot 1, Resurvey of Lots 4, 8, 9, 10, 11 & 12 Fourth Addition to Beacon Hills 

Map Book 241/Page 82 
City of Vestavia Hills, Owner 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that said rezoning is conditioned upon the 

following: (1) Gas stations and automotive repair/service facilities are prohibited; (2) the 

proposed sign located on the back of the building is removed; and (3) all permits between 

ALDOT and the developer are reviewed by the City Engineer. 

 
APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 12th day of October, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2602 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2602 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 12th day of October, 2015 as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 
 



 
 

Ordiinance Number
P
r 2602 
Page 3 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     APRIL 9, 2015 
 

• CASE:  P-1214-59 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Vestavia Hills R-2 to Vestavia Hills B-2 with 
future uses. 

 
•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  513 Montgomery Hwy. 

 
• APPLICANT/OWNER: City of Vestavia Hills 
 
• REPRESNTING AGENT: Getra Sanders 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Applicant is seeking to put a Chick-fil-A on current 

City Hall site. Building would be 4,927 square feet and have 15 parking spaces. Plan 
has been updated to shift the entrance on easement as well as parking on easement 
and overall easement improvements. Plan seems to meet all zoning requirements. 
Buffering, landscaping, rear walls and fences will remain the same. Attached is a 
letter from Steve Monk, Esq. reaffirming Chick-fil-a’s right for use of the easement. 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The request is consistent with 

the plan but is consistent for Village Center. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review: Reviewing plans. Will have comment at meeting. 
 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

 



 2 

MOTION  Mr. Wolfe made a motion to recommend approval of Rezoning of 513 
Montgomery Hwy. from Vestavia Hills R-2 to Vestavia Hills B-2 With Future Limited Uses For 
The Purpose of a Drive-Through Restaurantnwith the following conditions: 

1. The sign on the rear of the building is removed; 
2. Staff reviews all permits between developer and 

ALDOT. 
 
Second was by Mr. Visintainer. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

Mr. Brooks – yes          Mr. Wolfe – yes  
 Mr. House – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes 

Mr. Visintainer – yes   Mr. Goodwin – yes   
 Mr. Larson – yes    Motion carried. 

 
 



Figu re 17: Highway 31 North 
Land Use Analysis 

Neighborhood • primarily lust medium density single-family residentsal 
areas nub higher densints near ulLsge centec(1). Other uses may include 
schors6, places of worship. recreational areas, and open space .  

Village Center - mined ow centers with huthest densities In curt Arc.. 
	 Mix of WKS should include retail and service businesses. professional offices. 

high densiiv residential areas. instirurions, recreation areas, and public spaces. 

71 
 Commercial Corn • primarily high density, retail and service baroness 

areas with poslautional officer and multtiarnily residence, on upper floors or 
on penpherv. Other uses may include institutions and public space. 

C)  Gateways and Nodes iiiateways are entryways into the community or 
collage enhanced with cmoucent sogruge, landscaping, and other elements-
Nodes arc sites, such as trams slope, where public spaces. *image. and other 
public design elements should he considered. 

, 
Professional Offices pronanly professional office uses. Density should 

	 vary according to surroundings. Other uses may include retail and services 
(supporting officer and empleacees/, places of worship. public spaces. and open space. 

w Recreation  and Open Space pubic and private recreation facilities and 
preserved natural spaces. ReCfeD11011 facilities may be XfIVC. passive Of combined. Open 
spaces are areas preserved in a natural state and may include passim recreational uses. 

Trailheads • Trailheads are publw ores along a trail, where bike racks. searing, 
parking, and public amenities are provided for trail users. 

■ Schools • School facilities administrated by she Vestatia Hills School System 

50D 
	

500 	 1500 fres 

H NI \X'0 H IGHWAY 3 1 
I  NORTH ,\,,,,d 

connect  I 
local streets  -j 

\ where possible 
Vlestavia 

ineklinin 
density 

1/2 mile 
walking radius 

Culllinerc del 

1 - i Vi 

medium 
density 

S0‘)C,(J' 
oserly 

• 
\\_\,y;‘`- 

Country Club 

Byrd Park 	\ "transit-orienred 
, buffer and 
t transition 

I land uses • Elementary School developmenr" 
areas 

major 
retail fise, potential 

mixed-use 
development 

area 

11 1 . 1 \ e . 

\ 	increase: mix, 
density, and 
,,,nnectivity 

t I Il i s'. r 
I 

1/4 mile walking 
radius 

\ 	
H.111,111 Ili 

.., ,•1`, , t,1 , 

\ 	Li 

P; rk and 	\:  I 
Neighborhood 	_ 
Shoi ping area 

rAl t., t 6;1 1 1 	V 
n lid V 

aye,' 

preserve 
E' natural 

space 
LIcmentary School 

Rocky Ridge 

91 
	

Vestavia Hi/L .  Comprehensive Plan 



PROPOSED BUFFER AT INSTALL
Scale: 1"-10'-0"

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

9'-10' Height Ret. Wall
Drive Thru

10'-12' Hgt Evg Trees
30" Hgt. Evg Shrubs

8' Hgt Wood Fence

ELEVATION SECTION

PROPOSED BUFFER AT 5 YEARS GROWTH
Scale: 1"-10'-0"

ELEVATION

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

18'-20' Hgt Evg Trees
6'-8' Hgt. Evg Shrubs

SECTION

5.5' 10'

UT
ILI

TY
 E

SM
T

UT
ILI

TY
 E

SM
T

1.5'

5.5' 10'

UT
ILI

TY
 E

SM
T

UT
ILI

TY
 E

SM
T

1.5'

24" Root Depth
15" Root Depth5' 15" 24"

3' Undisturbed Soil
5' SS Depth

9'-10' High Retaining Wall
6'-8' Hgt. Evergreen Shrubs

18' -20' Hgt. Evergreen Trees
8' Hgt. Wood Fence

Mature Tree Root System
SS Pipe 8" SS Pipe

Mature Root Structure

9'-10' Height Ret. Wall
Drive Thru

8' Hgt Wood Fence

8' Hgt. Wood Fence
10'-12' Hgt. Evergreen Trees

30" Hgt. Evergreen Shrubs
9'-10' High Retaining Wall

SHEET TITLE

STORE

Sheet

:

:

:
:

:Checked By

Job No.

Drawn By

Date

Store 

ByDateMark

ByDateMark

Seal

Revisions:

DateMark By

5200 Buffington Rd.

Atlanta, Georgia

30349-2998

2014020

3339

5.21.15

Vestavia Hills

ISSUE DATE: 
VERSION:

Buffer Study

R-1.0

ADN

SLM

51 old canton street
alpharetta, ga 30009

ph: 770-442-8171
fx: 770-442-1123

7.21.15 ADN

9.11.15 ADN

Root Systems

Elevation Update

513 Montgomer Hwy
Vestavia Hills, AL

landscape architecture

8' Hgt. Wood Fence

10'-12' Hgt. Evergreen Trees
30" Hgt. Evergreen Shrubs
9'-10' Hgt. Retaining Wall

Existing Chain-link Fence

Existing Chain-link Fence
8' Hgt. Wood Fence

15' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

SS

OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP
OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHPSTONE WALL 8"CLAY

8"CLAY

ENT

N/F
ANDREW D & JAMIE LH BURKE

PARCEL# 28-00-19-4-016-006.000 N/F

N/F
CHRISTOPHER FREEMAN

PARCEL# 28-00-19-4-016-008.000

WOOD FENCE

WOOD FENCE CHAIN LINK FENCE

10' UTILITY ESMT.
(PB. 38, PG. 3)

NEW 10' SS EASEMENT

LANDSCAPE PLAN
Scale: 1"=10'-0"



LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS
A. STREET FRONTAGE LANDSCAPING

REQUIRED 1. Provide an 8' wide landscape strip along the length of parking and vehicular circulation areas that extend
within 25' of the front lot lines. 

2. 1 Canopy tree per 50 LF or 1 understory tree per 40 LF
186 (curb to curb) LF/50= 4 Canopy Trees or 186/40= 5 Understory Trees

3. 1 - 3 Gal. shrub per 3 LF 
186/3= 62 Shrubs

PROVIDED 1. 8' Wide landscape strip provided 
2. 4 Shumard Oak
3. 63 Shrubs (35 Needlepoint Holly & 28 Knock Out Rose)

B. PERIMETER LANDSCAPING
REQUIRED 1. 5' wide landscape strip along the length of parking and vehicular circulation areas not adjacent to roadways.

2. 1 Canopy tree per 50 LF or 1 understory tree per 40 LF
North: 200 LF/50= 4 Canopy Trees or 200/40= 5 Understory Trees
South: 271/50= 5 Canopy Trees or 271/40= 7 Understory Trees

3. 1 - 3 Gal. shrub per 3 LF 
North: 200 LF/3= 67 Shrubs
South: 271/3= 90 Shrubs

PROVIDED 1. Min. 5' wide landscape strip provided along vehicular circulation areas not adjacent to roadways
2. North: 7 Understory Trees (5 Sapphire Cypress & 2 Redbud)

South: 7 Understory Trees (3 Crepe Myrtle, 3 Sapphire Cypress & 1 Redbud)
3. North: 50 Shrubs (32 Needlepoint Holly & 18 Adagio Grass)

South: 93 Shrubs (63 Needlepoint Holly, 25 Spirea & 5 Hyrdrangea)
C. INTERIOR LANDSCAPING

REQUIRED 1. There shall be at least 20 SF of interior landscaping per parking space.
50 spaces x 20= 1000 SF of interior landscape area

2. Every planting area containing a required tree shall be at least 75 SF and 7' in width
3. There shall be a canopy tree within 80' or an understory tree within 60' of every parking space.

PROVIDED 1. 1929 SF of interior landscape area 
2. Interior landscape areas with a tree has a min. width of 7' and 75 SF
3. Every parking space is within 80' of a canopy tree or 60' of an understory tree (see tree circles)

D. BUILDING LANDSCAPING
REQUIRED 1. Building landscaping shall be incorporated along building elevations, which are 35' or greater in length

2. Building landscaping may be aggregated into one or more locations along the elevations to allow for 
pedestrian/vehicular access and loading areas along the building elevation.

3. Building landscape to have a min. depth of 6' 
4. Building landscape to include 10 hedge plant or shrubs per 50 LF

Building landscape to include 1 canopy tree per 50 LF or 1 understory per 35 LF
North: 128 LF = 4 Understory trees & 26 shrubs
South: 114 LF = 3 Understory trees & 13 shrubs
East: 35 LF = 1 Understory tree & 7 shrubs
West: 35 LF = 1 Understory tree & 7 shrubs
Total: 9 Understory Trees and 53 Shrubs

PROVIDED 1. Building landscaping incorporated along three sides of the building, the fourth side is limited due to
2. the drive thru window.
3. Majority of the planting areas are a min. 6' wide
4. North: No plantings due to drive thru window access

South: 7 Understory trees (5 Crepe Myrtle, 1 Jap Maple, 1 TF Ligustrum) and 58 shrubs
East: 2 Understory trees (2 TF Ligustrum) and 29 shrubs
West: 25 Shrubs
Total: 9 Understory Trees and 112 Shrubs

E. BUFFERS
REQUIRED 1. Class "B" buffer shall be provided along the rear property line. 

15' wide buffer strip if a fence or wall is used, or 20' wide with no fence or wall. 
2. 10 Understory trees in a single row per 100 LF

209 LF/100= 2.09 x 10 = 21 understory trees
3. 20 shrubs in a single row per 100 LF. Shrubs shall be evergreen and 30" hgt min. at planting

2.09 x 20= 42 shrubs
PROVIDED 1. 15' wide buffer provided w/t wall and fence

2. 22 trees provided:
14 Green Giant Arborvitae
8 Nellie R Stevens Holly

3. 42 Dwarf Burford shrubs

SHEET TITLE

STORE

Sheet

:

:

:
:

:Checked By

Job No.

Drawn By
Date
Store 

ByDateMark

ByDateMark

Seal

Revisions:
DateMark By

5200 Buffington Rd.
Atlanta, Georgia

30349-2998

2014020

3339

7.30.15

Vestavia Hills

ISSUE DATE: 
VERSION:

Landscape Plan 

L-1.0

ADN

SLM

51 old canton street
alpharetta, ga 30009

ph: 770-442-8171
fx: 770-442-1123

8.24.15 SLM
New Bldg Footprint

513 Montgomer Hwy
Vestavia Hills, AL

landscape architecture

0 20 40 FT
1. Contractor responsible for locating and protecting all underground utilities prior to digging.
2. Contractor responsible for protecting existing trees from damage during construction.
3. All shrubs beds (existing and new) to be mulched with a 3 inch minimum layer of double shredded hardwood mulch.
4. All annual and perennial beds to be tilled to a minimum depth of 12 inches and amended with 4 inches of organic material.  

Mulch planted annual and perennial beds with 2 inch depth of mini nuggets.
5. Planting holes to be dug a minimum of twice the width of the size of the root ball of both shrub and tree.  Back to be a mix of 

4 parts topsoil and 1 part organic soil conditioner (ie. Nature’s Helper or Pro Mix).  Backfill and tamp bottom of hole prior to 
planting so top of root ball does not settle below surrounding grade.

6. Existing grass in proposed planting areas to be killed and removed and area to be hand raked to remove all rocks and debris 
larger than 1 inch in diameter prior to planting shrubs.

7. Any existing grass disturbed during construction to be fully removed, regraded and replaced.  All tire marks and indentions to 
be repaired.

8. Soil to be tested to determine fertilizer and lime requirements and distributed prior to laying sod.
9. Sod to be delivered fresh (Cut less than 24 hours prior to arriving on site), laid immediately, rolled, and watered thoroughly 

immediately after planting.  Edge of sod is to be "V" trenched.
10. All changes to design or plant substitutions are to be authorized by the Landscape Architect.
11. All landscaping shall be installed in conformance with ANSI Z60.1 the “American Standard for Nursery Stock” and the 

accepted standards of the American Association of Nurserymen.
12. The Landscape Contractor shall guarantee all plants installed for one full year from date of acceptance by the owner.  All 

plants shall be alive and at a vigorous rate of growth at the end of the guarantee period.  The Landscape Contractor shall
not be responsible for acts of God or vandalism.

13. Any plant that is determined dead, in an unhealthy or unsightly condition, lost its shape due to dead branches or other 
symptoms of poor, non-vigorous growth shall be replaced by the Landscape Contractor.

14. General Contractor is responsible for adding a min of 4" of clean friable topsoil in all planting beds and all grassed areas.  
Graded areas to be held down the appropriate elevation to account for topsoil.  See specifications for required topsoil 
characteristics.

15. General Contractor to mound all parking islands 6" - 10" w/t clean friable topsoil. 
16. Prior to beginning work, the Landscape Contractor shall inspect the subgrade, general site conditions, verify elevations, 

utility locations, irrigation, approve topsoil provided by General Contractor and observe the site conditions under which the
work is to be done.  Notify General Contractor of any unsatisfactory conditions, and work shall not proceed until such 
conditions have been corrected and are acceptable to the Landscape Contractor.

17. Stake all evergreen and deciduous trees as shown in the details this sheet.
18. Remove all stakes and guying from all trees after one year from planting.
19. Water thoroughly twice in first 24 hours and apply mulch immediately.
20. Site to be 100% irrigated in all planting beds and grass area by an automatic underground Irrigation System.   See Irrigation 

Plan L-2.0 for design.
21. All tree protection devices to be installed prior to the start of land disturbance, and maintained until final landscaping.
22. All tree protection areas to be protected from sedimentation.
23. All tree protection fencing to be inspected daily, and repaired or replaced as needed.
24. No parking, storage or other construction activities are to occur within tree protection areas.

LANDSCAPE NOTES

S08N-144 V8 BUILDING

4,791 S.F. (bldg shell)

136 SEATS (inside)

28 SEATS (outdoors)

47 PARKS

ON
LY

15
' L

AN
DS

CA
PE

 B
UF

FE
R

FH

W
M

SS

FH

W

M

OHP
OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP
OH

HP
OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP
OHP
OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP
OHP

OHP
OHP

OHPO
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H
P

KEYSTONE  WALL

K
E
Y
S
T
O

N
E  W

A
LL

S
T

O
N

E
 W

A
L
L

L

P

L

P

L

P

C
O

N
C

. 

C
O

N
C

. 

CONC. BLOCK WALL

C
E

L
L

T
O

W
E

R

M
H

S
S

=
9
7
4
.

5
1
'

IE
=
9
6
9
.0

7
'(

4
")

IE
=
9
6
8
.6

5
'(
I

N
)

IE
=
9
6
8
.5

5
'(

O
U

T
)

8
"C

L
A

Y

8
"C

L
A

Y

S
S

=
9
7
1
.

0
6
'(

9
'(
I

M
O

N
T
G

O
M

E
R

Y
 H

IG
H

W
A
Y

/ 
U

S

D
O

 N
O

T
E

N
T

E
R

MUNICIPLE

CENTER
SIGN

N
/F

N
E

W
 O

W
N

E
R

S
 
V

E
S

T
A
V

IA
 L

L
C

P
A

R
C

E
L
#
 2

8
-1

9
-3

-0
1
2
-0

0
2
.0

0
0

N
/F

A
N

D
R

E
W

 D
 &

 J
A

M
IE

 L
H

 B
U

R
K

E

P
A

R
C

E
L
#
 2

8
-0

0
-1

9
-4

-0
1
6
-0

0
6
.0

0
0

N
/F

H
E

L
E

N
 V

 J
O

N
E

S

P
A

R
C

E
L
#
 2

8
-0

0
-1

9
-4

-0
1
6
-0

0
7
.0

0
0

N
/F

C
H

R
IS

T
O

P
H

E
R

 F
R

E
E

M
A

N

P
A

R
C

E
L
#
 2

8
-0

0
-1

9
-4

-0
1
6
-0

0
8
.0

0
0

W
O

O
D

 F
E

N
C

E

W
O

O
D

 F
E

N
C

E

C
H

A
IN

 L
IN

K
 F

E
N

C
E

F
O

C

EASTWOOD CIRCLE

IP
F
 1

/2
"

R
E

B
A

R 
W

/C
A

P

IP
F
 5

/8
"

R
E

B
A

R 

IP
F
 1

/2
"

R
E

B
A

R 
W

/C
A

P

IP
F
 1

"
P

O
S

T

U
N

A
B

L
E 

T
O 

L
O

C
A
T

E 
M

A
N

H
O

L
E

C1

C
2

R 35'-0"

C
E

L
L

T
O

W
E

R
P
A

R
C

E
L

1
0
' U

T
IL

IT
Y

 E
S

M
T
.

(P
B

. 
3
8
, 
P

G
. 
3
)

N
E

W
 1

0
' S

S
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

83-Variegated Liriope
15' Landscape Buffer

Flag Pole

Main Sign

8' High Wood Privacy Fence with 
Columns at 50' on center

70-Variegated Liriope

99-Variegated Liriope

118-Variegated Liriope

42-Dwarf Burford Holly

4-Nellie R. Stevens Holly

15'

20-Adagio Maiden Grass

26-Parson's Juniper

26-Carissa Holly

1-Existing Tree to Remain

6-Armstrong Juniper

57-Variegated Liriope

7-Limelight Hydrangea

4-Armstrong Juniper

2-Tree Form Ligustrum

Color Bed

7-Carissa Holly

12-Anthony Waterer Spirea

39-Variegated Liriope

1-Tree Form Ligustrum

3-Limelight Hydrangea

1-Emerald Arborvitae

15-Purple Bicolor Daylily

13-Coral Drift Rose

24-Variegated Liriope

4-Shumard Oak

1-Musashino Zelkova

5-Carolina Sapphire Cypress

8-Limelight Hydrangea

81-Purple Bicolor Daylily

9-Carissa Holly

12-Needlepoint Holly

21-Needlepoint Holly

5-Armstrong Juniper

12-Anthony Waterer Spirea

66-Variegated Liriope

11-Armstrong Juniper

7-Green Giant Arborvitae

1-Forest Pansy Redbud

1-Japanese Maple

5-Sioux Crepe Myrtle

1-Forest Pansy Redbud

EXISTING TREE TO REMAIN

EXISTING TREE TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING TREE SYMBOLS

80' Radius

80' Radius

1-Forest Pansy Redbud

2-Bosque Elm

4-Nellie R. Stevens Holly

1-Carolina Sapphire Cypress

10-Limelight Hydrangea

5-Limelight Hydrangea

28-Coral Drift Rose

43-Adagio Maiden Grass

12-Needlepoint Holly
84-Variegated Liriope

30-Needlepoint Holly

28-Knock Out Rose

135-Variegated Liriope

16-Needlepoint Holly

13-Armstrong Juniper

20-Goldmound Spiraea

18-Anthony Waterer Spirea

6-Limelight Hydrangea

80-Variegated Liriope

15-Goldmound Spiraea
56-Variegated Liriope

3-Sioux Crepe Myrtle

10-Carissa Holly

3-Limelight Hydrangea

3-Bosque Elm

7-Green Giant Arborvitae

10'

New 10' SS Easement

14-Coral Drift Rose

PLANT LIST
Qty Botanical Name Common Name Scheduled Size Remarks

Trees
1 Acer palmatum var. atropurpureum 'Burgundy Lace' Burgundy Lace Japanese Maple 15 Gal.
3 Cercis canadensis 'Forest Pansy' Forest Pansy Redbud 8'-10' Hgt. x 5'-6' Spr. B & B
6 Cupressus arizonica 'Carolina Sapphire' Carolina Sapphire Cypress Min. 7' hgt
8 Ilex x 'Nellie R. Stevens' Nellie R. Stevens Holly Min. 10'-12' Hgt. Plant 10' OC
8 Lagerstroemia indica 'Sioux' Sioux Crepe Myrtle Min. 7' hgt B & B; Multi-trunked
3 Ligustrum japonicum 'Tree Form' Tree Form Ligustrum Min. 7'-8' Hgt. x 3'-4' Spr. Tree Form; Multi-trunked
4 Quercus shumardii Shumard Oak Min. 2.5" Cal. 12' Hgt B & B
14 Thuja 'Green Giant' Green Giant Arborvitae Min. 10'-12' Hgt. Planted 9' OC
1 Thuja occidentalis 'Emerald' Emerald Arborvitae 5'-6' Hgt.
5 Ulmus parvifolia 'Bosque' Bosque Elm Min. 2.5" Cal. 12' Hgt B & B
1 Zelkova serrata 'Musashino' Musashino Zelkova Min. 2.5" Cal. 12' Hgt B & B

Shrubs
42 Hydrangea paniculata 'Limelight' Limelight Hydrangea Min. 12" Hgt. 
52 Ilex cornuta 'Carissa' Carissa Holly Min. 12" Hgt. 
42 Ilex cornuta 'Dwarf Burford' Dwarf Burford Holly Min. 30" Hgt. Buffer Shrub; Plant 42" O.C.
91 Ilex cornuta 'Needlepoint' Needlepoint Holly Min. 18" Hgt
39 Juniperus chinensis 'Armstrongii' Armstrong Juniper Min. 18" Hgt
26 Juniperus davurica 'Parsonii' Parson's Juniper Min. 12" Hgt. 
63 Miscanthus sinensis 'Adagio' Adagio Maiden Grass Min. 12" Hgt. 
28 Rosa x 'Knock Out' Knock Out Rose Min. 18" Hgt
35 Spiraea japonica 'Goldmound' Goldmound Spiraea Min. 18" Hgt
42 Spiraea x bumalda 'Anthony Waterer' Anthony Waterer Spirea Min. 12" Hgt. 

Groundcovers
96 Hemerocallis 'Purple Bicolor Daylily' Purple Bicolor Daylily 1 Gal.
911 Liriope muscari 'Variegata' Variegated Liriope 4" Pot Plant 15" O.C.
55 Rosa 'Coral Drift' Coral Drift Rose 3 Gal. Plant 2' O.C.
70 Color Bed Annual Color Bed SF; Prep & Plant

Other



SS SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

M
HS

S=
97

4.
51

'

IE
=9

69
.0

7'(
4"

)

IE
=9

68
.6

5'(
IN

)

IE
=9

68
.5

5'(
O

UT
)

8"
CL

AY

8"
CL

AY

M
HS

S=
97

1.
09

'

IE
=9

68
.0

6'
(6

")
IE

=9
67

.4
9'

(IN
)

IE
=9

67
.4

5'
(O

UT
)

SS 8"CLAY

6"STEEL

M
O

NT
G

O
M

ER
Y

HI
G

HW
AY

/ U
S 

HW
Y.

 3
1

( V
AR

IA
BL

E 
 P

UB
LI

C 
 R

/W
)

TYSON
DRIVE

W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

8"
 W

FO
C

S
S

SS

SS

SS

SS

8" W

EASTWOOD CIRCLE
( 40  R/W)

(TO BE ABANDONED)

UN
AB

LE
 T

O
LO

CA
TE

M
AN

HO
LE

C1

C2

co

co

co

EX
IT

EN
TE

R

NE
W

 1
0' 

O
C

SS
 E

AS
EM

EN
T 

CO
M

M
ER

CI
AL

 S
ID

E

X

X
CURBED ISLAND

TRAFFIC CONTROL ARROW
CURB & GUTTER

STANDARD PARKING QUANTITY

STRIPED ISLAND

CONCRETE SURFACE

STANDARD DUTY
ASPHALT PAVING

ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACE

4" SWSL - 4" WIDE SINGLE 
       WHITE SOLID LINE

LIGHT POLE

PROPERTY LINE

PARKING RATIO = 1 SPACE PER 100 SF OF GFA PLUS
PATIO AREA MINUS NON-CUSTOMER AREA

TOTAL GFA = 4,958 SF BUILDING; PATIO = 900 SF
NON CUSTOMER AREA = 2672

PARKING SPACES REQUIRED = 32

STANDARD SPACES PROVIDED = 45 SPACES
HANDICAP SPACES PROVIDED = 2 SPACES
TOTAL SPACES PROVIDED = 47

SITE ZONING: B-1 or B-2

SETBACKS
FRONT  - 30 FEET
RIGHT SIDE - 0-10 FEET
LEFT SIDE - 0-10 FEET
REAR  - 30 FEET

EXISTING AREA TABULATION:

IMPERVIOUS AREA
BUILDING PAD,
ASPHALT PAVEMENT,
CONCRETE, GRAVEL 1.05 ACRES (86.3%)

PERVIOUS AREA
GRASS/LANDSCAPE 0.17 ACRES (13.7%)

TOTAL AREA 1.22 ACRES (100%)

PROPOSED AREA TABULATION:

IMPERVIOUS AREA
BUILDING, PAVEMENT,
CONCRETE 0.91 ACRES (75%)

PERVIOUS AREA
GRASS/LANDSCAPE 0.31 ACRES (25%)

TOTAL AREA 1.22 ACRES (100%)

32

27

25

24

23

21

20

19

18

15

14

13

12

11

7
7

33

34

17

8

5

9

6

10

1

3

2

4

DRIVE-THRU GRAPHICS

1

3

2

4

41

42

43

44

45

C-4.0

22

6A

6B

6C

6D

8

16

6E

46

6F

6G

6H

C-4.0

C-4.0

C-4.0

C-4.0

C-4.0

19A

19B

5

6
C-4.0

C-4.0

6I

6J

47

48

STANDARD PARKING STALL & STRIPING DETAIL, NEUTRAL
AREAS SHALL BE MARKED WITH 4" WIDE STRIPES AT 48"
O.C. UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

DIRECTIONAL ARROW

STOP LINE GRAPHIC

PAINTED ACCESSIBILITY SYMBOL

DIRECTIONAL SIGNAGE (REFER TO SIGN PACKAGE FOR MORE
DETAILS)

ALL SIGNS SHALL CONFORM TO THE "MANUAL ON UNIFORM
TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES" BY THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION.

STOP SIGN (R1-1 30"X30")

HANDICAP SIGN

DRIVE-THRU SIGN

RIGHT TURN ONLY SIGN

ONE WAY SIGN (R6-1 OR R6-2)

LEFT TURN ONLY

PEDESTRIANS CROSSING

EXIT ONLY SIGN

DO NOT ENTER SIGN (R5-1)

THANK YOU

49

SIDEWALK ACCESSIBLE RAMP

CURB RAMP w/ FLARED SIDES

RETURNED CURB ACCESSIBLE RAMP

TRUNCATED DOMES

TYPICAL CONCRETE SIDEWALK

SIDEWALK WITH CURB & GUTTER SECTION

DRIVE-THRU PLAN VIEW

DRIVE-THRU ISOMETRIC VIEW

SOLID PLASTIC WHEEL STOP

LANDSCAPE & IRRIGATION PROTECTOR

24" CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER - CATCHING & SPILLING

ROLLOVER/MOUNTABLE CURB

REFUSE ENCLOSURE FOUNDATION PLAN

REFUSE ENCLOSURE FOUNDATION PLAN (ALT) (NOT USED)

REFUSE ENCLOSURE ALTERNATE DRAINAGE PLAN (NOT USED)

CONCRETE BOLLARD

TYPICAL PAVEMENT SECTION

TRANSVERSE & LONGITUDINAL CONTRACTION JOINT

TRANSVERSE & LONGITUDINAL DOWELED
CONSTRUCTION JOINT

CONCRETE APRON @ TRASH ENCLOSURE

CONCRETE PAVING @ DRIVE THRU LANE

TYPICAL ADA RAMP AND HANDRAIL

MULTI-ORDER POINT DIRECTIONAL ARROW DETAILS

DRIVE-THRU ORDER POINT ISLAND CURB

PAVER OR STAMPED CONCRETE CROSSWALK

CHICK-FIL-A SIGN (REFER TO SIGN PACKAGE)

PRE-SELL MENU BOARD (NOT USED)

MENU BOARD & CANOPY ORDERING STATION (REFER TO SIGN PACKAGE)

CHICK-FIL-A "ENTER" SIGN (NOT USED)

CHICK-FIL-A "EXIT" SIGN (NOT USED)

50' FLAG POLE (REFER TO SIGN PACKAGE)

CLEARANCE BARS

LIGHT POLE & BASE

BITUMASTIC EXPANSION JOINT, TYP. INSTALL EXPANSION JOINT
BETWEEN ALL CONCRETE PAVEMENT INTERFACE WITH BUILDINGS,
CURB & GUTTER, AND OTHER CONSTRAINED OBJECTS, TYPICAL.

50 SITE CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO ARCHITECT PLANS FOR THE
EXACT DIMENSIONS OF THE BUILDING AND THE LOCATION OF
DOORWAYS, UTILITIES, ETC.

51 GATES TO BE INSTALLED BY BUILDING CONTRACTOR WITH DUMPSTER
STRUCTURE. COORDINATE WITH PAVEMENT INSTALLATION

52 SAWCUT EXISTING CURB & GUTTER AS NECESSARY TO COMPLETE
NEW CURB & GUTTER CONNECTION. PROVIDE EXPANSION JOINT BETWEEN
INTERFACE.

53 THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL NECESSARY TRAFFIC CONTROL, SAFETY
BARRICADES, LIGHTING, AND OTHER REQUIRED CONTROL MEASURES TO
SECURE THE WORK AREA FROM EXISTING TRAFFIC AND TO ENSURE
PUBLIC SAFETY.

54

55

TRANSFORMER PAD

SINGLE WHITE SOLID LINE

28

31

30

29

CONTRACTION JOINT

KEYED CONSTRUCTION JOINT

LONGITUDINAL BUTT JOINT

EXPANSION JOINT

26 ALUMINUM HANDRAIL

35 MENU BOARD LOOP DETECTION SYSTEM

8A CURB RAMP w/ SHORT FLARED SIDES
8A

C-4.0
9

C-4.0
10

C-4.0
11

C-4.0
12

C-4.0
13

C-4.1
14

C-4.1
15

C-4.1
16

C-4.1
17

C-4.1
18

C-4.1
19

C-4.1
19A

C-4.1
19B

C-4.1
20

C-4.1

21A PAVEMENT EDGE DETAIL

21
C-4.2

21A
C-4.2

22
C-4.2

23
C-4.2

24
C-4.2

25
C-4.2

26
C-4.2

27
C-4.2

28
C-4.2

29
C-4.2

30
C-4.2

31
C-4.2

36 ENTRY DOOR FROST SLAB DETAIL

37 SAN. C.O. OUTSIDE BUILDING

38 BUILDING DOWNSPOUT CONNECTION DETAIL

39 TYPICAL SECTION AT INLET/CATCH BASIN DETAIL

40 STORM WEEP HOLE DETAIL

32
C-4.3

33
C-4.3

34
C-4.3

35
C-4.5

36
C-4.3

37
C-4.3

38
C-4.3

39
C-4.3

40
C-4.3

56 BIKE RACK

21
06

 M
ac

y 
D

riv
e

Ro
sw

el
l, 

G
A 

30
07

6
PH

: 
77

0-
57

3-
48

01
 F

AX
: 

67
8-

30
2-

63
62

A

L A B A MA

L I C ENS ED

E NG I N E E RTODD  ROG E RS

C
:\D

ro
pb

ox
 (G

re
yd

en
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g)
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

20
13

\1
3-

01
6 

C
FA

 V
es

ta
vi

a 
H

ill
s\

D
el

iv
er

ab
le

s\
01

-3
33

9-
C

-2
.0

.d
w

g 
   

S
he

et
 N

o:
 C

-2
.0

S
av

ed
 b

y:
to

dd
 - 

Th
ur

sd
ay

, A
ug

us
t 1

3,
 2

01
5

12
:4

9 
P

M
P

rin
te

d 
by

:T
od

d 
- A

ug
us

t 2
1,

 2
01

5
2:

50
 P

M

















































Ordinance Number 2603 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2603 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL 
FOR A HOME OCCUPATION AT 3794 POE DRIVE 

 
 WHEREAS, on December 13, 2010, the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2331, also known as the City 

of Vestavia Hills Zoning Code; and 

 WHEREAS, Jon Hinds is the owner of the property located at 3794 Poe Drive 

zoned Vestavia Hills R-4 (residential district) more particularly described as S ½ of Lot 4 

and all of Lot 3, Block 3, Glass 3rd Add to New Merkle; and 

 WHEREAS, Jon Hinds is also the owner of On-Guard Security, which has 

operated at said location as a home office; however, Mr. Hinds has presented an 

application for Conditional Use Approval for the purpose of a home occupation with one 

(1) full time employee and two (2) “drop in” employees who do not reside on the 

property pursuant to Section 7.1 of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code entitled “Home 

Occupation:” and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Conditional Use approval is hereby granted for a home occupation with one 

(1) full time employee and two (2) “drop in” employees who do not reside on 

the property pursuant to Section 7.1 of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code 

entitled “Home Occupation”; and 

2. Business hours will be M-F, 8 AM to 5 PM; and 

3. Home must remain residential in appearance and functionality; and 

4. Owner must remain a resident of the home; and 

5. No signage for the business will be permitted; and 

6. Said Conditional Use shall expire if the business continues to grow and an 

additional employee is hired; and 

7. No customers will visit the home at any time; and 

8. City Engineer will review and approve any requested additional 

improvements to the lot and/or improved parking on said lot; and 



Ordinance Number 2603 
Page 2 

 
9. Said conditional use shall continue in perpetuity pursuant to the Zoning Code 

until such time as use ceases to exist on said property for a period of one year; 

or  

10. This Ordinance Number 2603 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption, approval and publishing/posting pursuant to Alabama law; and 

 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 12th day of October, 

2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2603 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 12th day of October, 2015 as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



P&ZApplication

Page 4

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS

APPLICATION

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

I. INSTRUCTIONS AND INFORMATION:

(1) The Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission meets regularly on the
second Thursday of each month at 6:00 PM in Council Chambers at the
Municipal Center.

(2) All materials and information relating to a zoning/rezoning request or conditional
use approval before the Planning and Zoning Commission must be submitted to
the Office of the City Clerk no later than 25 working days prior to the
scheduled meeting at which it shall be considered. All information relating to
Preliminary Map approvals must be submitted to the Office of the City Clerk no
later than 20 days prior to the scheduled meeting at which is shall be considered.
All information relating to Final Map approvals must be submitted to the Office
of the City Clerk no later than 15 days prior to the scheduled meeting at which it
is to be considered.

(3) This application must be filled out in its entirety complete with zip codes.
(4) All applicable fees shall accompany this application prior to its being considered

complete. Fees include an application fee of $100.00 along with applicable
postage per property owner to be notified for Commission meeting. Fees may
also include notification fees for City Council meeting and publication fees which
will be billed to applicant at a later date. **Nopermits will be issueduntil allfees
have been paid.

(5) Appropriate plats and maps with proper legal description shall accompany this
application. Please refer to attached checklist.

II. APPLICANT INFORMATION: (owner of property)

NAME: CTc/\ j4ir\ds
»

ADDRESS: 3 7 9H A> g Of. ^_

MAILING ADDRESS (ifdifferentfrom above) W_
o

PHONE NUMBER: Home £2 2~ 12. 33 Office £.*}$- %l3 I

NAME OF REPRESENTING ATTORNEY OR OTHER AGENT:



III. ACTION REQUESTED

P&ZApplication

Page 5

Request that the above described property be approved conditional use approval pursuant
to Section of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code.

Current Zoning of Property:

Requested Conditional use For the intended purpose of: n£$K. ^/f/i/^-Vc/"V

(Example: From "VHR-1" to \Jyfl 0-1"for office building)
**ifadditional information is needed, please attachedfull description ofrequest**

IV. PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: (address, legal, etc.)

SBH yoe )()r\)/e

Property size: JjLI ^eet ^ /^w feet. Acres:

V. INFORMATION ATTACHED:

Attached Checklist complete with all required information.

Application fees submitted.

VI. 1 do hereby declare the above statements are true and that I, the owner, and/or my duly
appointed representative will be at the scheduled hearing.

m.
Owner Signature/Date Representing Agent (if any)/date

Given under my hand and seal _
this JS day of Al^y 20 /f .

,, NJryKblic Myt^MnissionExpHBS
My commission expires November 18 2016
day of , 20 .

—



Conrad Garrison

From: Jon Hinds <jhinds@onguard-inc.com>
Sent: Tuesday, May 19, 2015 9:34 AM
To: Conrad Garrison

Subject: FW: Condition use 3794 Poe Dr.

Mr. Garrison,

Conditional use for home office application:

Concerning a description of business activity at my home residence 3794 Poe Dr. in Cahaba Heights.
I own an Alarm installation & servicing company. I started this company in 2000, we do not receive customers, I go out
to their houses to evaluate and quote jobs.
I have 5 employees, myself, my wife and one assistant work in the office, they answer phones, schedule appointments,
process paperwork and take care of billing for over one thousand customers. I understand that if I higher another person
to work in the office that I will have to move my employees to another location.
I have three technicians, one drives his own van and calls in all his service work rarely coming by the office. One drives a
company van but takes it home. He comes in every morning to pick up paper work. The third drives his car to the office
and takes out a company SUV.

We make little to no traffic outside of 3 people coming to work in the morning at 8. Our hours are 8am to 5pm Monday

through Friday.

More because of having a large family then employees we have a lot of parking. We can easy park two cars in the front

and 4 in the back. At night we have 4 cars all in the back and one in the front. During the day if I am home we have 3

cars, two in the back and one in the front.

The house defiantly looks residential and we are not wanting to advertize or make the house look like it has a business in

it. Across the street is zoned for mixed use and commercial. On our south side of the property we are adjacent to a
dental office. I believe the current buffering around my property should be sufficient but may be reviewed by the board.
We made substantial improvements to our house since I bought it fresh out of the Air Force in 1991.

At this point in my business it would bring upon my family a substantial financial hardship if we had to pay rent.

Conrad, if there is any more information you need please let me know.

Sincerely,

Jon Hinds

Security Specialist

Ph :205-298-8131

Cell: 205-222-7233

On Guurd

Sccuril*

«rrap»

www.onguardsecurity.net
This menage may contain confidentialand/orproprietary information, andis intended forlheperson/entity to which it was originally
addressed. Any use by others is strictlyprohibited



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

Date: JUNE 11, 2015 

• CASE: P-0515-22 

• REQUESTED ACTION:  Conditional Use Approval For a Home Occupation With 
One Employee 

• ADDRESS/LOCATION:  3794 Poe Dr. 

• APPLICANT/OWNER:  Jon Hinds. 3794 Poe Dr. Vestavia Hills, AL 35223 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  The applicant has been operating an alarm installation 
company since 2000 at his home address. The company employs 5 people. Two of 
the 5 (including his wife) work in the home, doing scheduling, billing, etc. Three 
technicians visit the house every morning to pick up paperwork, however, only 1 
company SUV is parked overnight at the residence. The applicant contends they have 
adequate parking and the home remains residential in nature since he still lives there. 
The applicant also agrees that if he were to add an additional employee he would 
move the business out of the house. No customers or clients visit the house and there 
is not signage. 

The parcel is zoned Vestavia Hills R-4. The parcel to the south is zoned commercial 
in Mountain Brook and the parcel across the street is zoned Vestavia Hills B-2. Staff 
has received no complaints about the business since its inception. See attached for a 
more detailed description and site plan from applicant. 

• CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN:  This Future Land Use Plan in the 
Community Plan calls for this parcel to be medium density residential, however, since 
this is only a Conditional Use request the underlying land use will remain the same. 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

1. City Planner Review: I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc. Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law. I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning. 

City Planner Recommendation: I recommend that if the Commission 
recommends approval the following conditions are requested: 

a) Business hours will be M-F, 8 AM-5 PM; 

1 



b) Home must remain residential in appearance and functionality; 
c) Owner must remain a resident in the house; 
d) No signage for the business will be permitted; 
e) Any additional employees will require the business to be moved to a 

different location; 
f) Approval is only valid for applicant and business; 
g) No customers will visit the home; 
h) City engineer to review and approve any additional improvements lot 

and/or parking. 

2. City Engineer Review: I will review site plan and parking improvements. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

MOTION Mr. Burrell made a motion to recommend approval of Conditional Use 
application for a Home Occupation with One Employee for the Property at 3794 Poe Dr. with 
the following conditions: 

a) Business hours will be M-F, 8 AM-5 PM; 
b) Home must remain residential in appearance and functionality; 
c) Owner must remain a resident in the house; 
d) No signage for the business will be permitted; 
e) Any additional employees will require the business to be moved to a 

different location; 
0 Approval is only valid for applicant and business; 
g) No customers will visit the home; 
h) City engineer to review and approve any additional improvements lot 

and/or parking. 

Second was by Mr. Gilchrist. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
Mr. Goodwin — no 
	 Mr. Burrell — no 

Mr. Gilchrist — yes 
	

Mr. Sharp — yes 
Mr. Wolfe — yes 
	 Mr. House — no 

Mr. Larson — yes 
	 Motion failed. 

2 



Future Land Use

Page 14

•Suk^ecJ-

^H l„.imu...n.,/

Figure 4: Future Land UseMap

Mill. 'Mill



P0515-22//28-15-1 -12-6
3794 Poe Drive

Conditional Use

Jon Hinds R-4

Mt. Brook

R-4

Mt. Brook

R-4

Mt.

Brook

R-4

Natural elevation

And green buffer

Vestavia R-4

Subject
Property —.
R-4

Parking for
2 carsl

^~>

Vacant Lot Parking Dental office

_

Mountain Brook

B-l

Overton Rd.

Poe Dr.

Vestavia B2

Dry Cleaners
Deliveries

Dumpster

Over

Villa

Mt.

B-2

on

:i£e

\ too!

Overton

Village
Parking



Ordinance Number 2604 

Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2604 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL 

FOR A HOME OCCUPATION  

 

 WHEREAS, on December 13, 2010, the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2331, also known as the City 

of Vestavia Hills Zoning Code; and 

 WHEREAS, on February 19, 2001 the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills 

adopted and approved Ordinance Number 1864 to rezone 3,350 +/- acres from multiple 

Jefferson County and Vestavia Hills zoning classifications to Vestavia Hills P.U.D.; and 

 WHEREAS, Section 709.5.A.1.b of Ordinance Number 1838 classifies a “home 

occupation” permitted only as a “Conditional Use” and 

 WHEREAS, Peggy Vanek-Titus is the owner of the property located at 4191 

Vestview Drive, currently zoned Vestavia Hills PUD PR-1 (planned unit development 

planned residential district) more particularly described as Lot 65, Vestview Village (MB 

181 MP 97); and 

 WHEREAS, Peggy Vanek-Titus has submitted application for conditional use 

approval for a home occupation to be operated in her residence located at 4191 Vestview 

Drive, Vestavia Hills, Alabama located in the Liberty Park P.U.D.; and 

 WHEREAS, Peggy Vanek-Titus has indicated in her application for conditional 

use approval that she will operate an office for her pet sitting business out of her home 

pursuant to the specifications of a home occupation; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of said application dated July 24, 2015 is attached and 

hereby incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2604. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 



Ordinance Number 2604 

Page 2 

 

1. Conditional Use Approval is hereby approved for Peggy Vanek-Titus for a 

home occupation as described in the above-referenced application for her 

residence located at 4191 Vestview Drive, Vestavia Hills, Alabama located in 

Liberty Park P.U.D. subject to the provisions outlined in Article 9 of the 

Vestavia Hills Zoning Code outlined as follows: 

a. “Home occupation is defined as any use customarily conducted entirely 

within a dwelling and carried on solely by the inhabitant thereof, and 

which use is clearly incidental, accessory, subordinate and secondary to 

the use of the dwelling for dwelling purposes, and does not change the 

character of the dwelling itself or any part of parcel of property in the 

neighborhood surrounding said dwelling; and 

b. Home occupations shall be conducted only in the main dwelling building 

on the lot.  No more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the said dwelling 

may be used for a home occupation; and 

c. There shall be no public display of goods and absolutely no commodities 

sold on the premises; and 

d. No sign may be attached to the dwelling or any part of the real estate 

advertising any home occupation; and 

e. No home occupation or profession shall be permitted if such occupation 

creates noise, odors, vibrations or traffic which interferes with the 

residential qualities of the neighborhood insofar as health, safety, morals, 

convenience and general welfare are concerned; and 



Ordinance Number 2604 

Page 3 

 

f. In order to be a permitted home occupation or profession, the use must be 

one which is habitually, customarily and commonly established as a 

reasonable incidental, accessory, subordinate and secondary use; and 

g. Operation of any and all other business of any nature in residential zones 

is expressly prohibited; and 

h. The activity carried on as home occupation shall be limited to the hours 

between 7:00 AM and 10:00 PM; and 

i. No home occupation shall be permitted that requires the operation or 

keeping on premises of a commercial vehicle and no additional traffic 

shall be generated by said conditional use; and 

j. No persons other than members of the family residing on the premises 

shall be employed by the home occupation; and 

2. Conditional Use Approval is further conditioned upon and subject to all 

applicable private and restrictive covenants attached to the property located at 

said property located in the Liberty Park P.U.D. 

3. A City of Vestavia Hills Business License shall be issued upon application 

and payment by Peggy Vanek-Titus working subject to the rules and 

regulations outlined in the Vestavia Hills Business License Code and shall be 

renewed each year that the home occupation is operated from the location at 

said property located in the Liberty Park P.U.D. 

4. At any time should Peggy Vanek-Titus vacate the premises located at 4191 

Vestview Drive, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, discontinue or relocate this 



Ordinance Number 2604 

Page 4 

 

business, this conditional use approval shall be nullified and said Ordinance 

Number 2604 shall be automatically repealed. 

5. This Ordinance Number 2604 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption, approval and publishing/posting pursuant to Alabama law; and 

 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 12
th

 day of October, 

2015. 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 

 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2604 is a true and 

correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills on the 12
th

 day of October, 2015 as same appears in the official records of 

said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Library in the Forest, 

Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 

______ day of ______________, 2015. 

 

 

 

 

      Rebecca Leavings 

      City Clerk 

 



Ordinance Number 2605 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2605 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS R-
1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS B-1.2. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills R-1 (low density 

residential district) to Vestavia Hills B-1.2 (planned business district):  

3127 Blue Lake Drive and 4565 Pine Tree Circle 
Lot 10-A, Acton’s Resurvey ofLot 8 thru 10 and  

Lots 11 & 12, Topfield Subdivision 
Beth A. Holsenback, Kenneth Andrews and Pine Tree Partners, LLC, Owners 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 12th day of October, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2605 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2605 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 12th day of October, 2015 as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 
 
 
 



Ordiinance Number
P
r 2605 
Page 3 

 

 



S
C
A
L
E
:

SI
T

E 
P
LA

N
1

1/
16
"=

1'
-0

"
TS

C

TS
C







Future Land Use 

I Am-1).11311y Ite*Itlottial 

\ tedium- rArrootl Rnscimnal 

I hgh-thrnsity 

IIIIII  Retail/Maui Use 

Lmutori Mi3.1.1 U. 

EMI  Planocal Nhsucal Use 

MIN ht,Inutanul 

ION  Narks-ml  irvnNtm,  

' 
• \ 

ihrrrn ha 	 Icif•rlon Coon.. 

I 	I  
i 

* 
. 	 •.,,,X • 
\ 	 , 

'a, 	1 \ 1,..,..I 1% 12t 111111  --, 
c.. 

a 

II 1 ittic ). 

■•■ 

• 

If 
6.0".  

RIR  N  NGH. 

Figure 4: Future Land Use Map 

Page 14 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     SEPTEMBER 10, 2015 
 

• CASE:  P-0715-36 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Vestavia Hills R-1 Vestavia Hills B-1.2 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  3127 Blue Lake Dr., 4565 Pine Tree Cir. 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER: Pine Tree Partners 
 

• REPRESNTING AGENT: Len Shannon 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property is on Blue Lake Dr. and on the corner of 
Colonnade Parkway and Pine Tree Cir.  Applicant is seeking rezoning to build a 
retail/restaurant/office building. The building would be 22,240 sq. ft. and 2 stories. 
The building would have 12’ setback along Blue Lake Dr., 12’ along Colonnade 
Pkwy., 50’ along Pine Tree Cir., and 15’ on the east side of the property. A proposed 
site plan and landscaping plan is enclosed. A creek runs through the east portion of 
the property is proposed to be piped. 

 
• CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN:  The request is consistent with the 

Cahaba Heights Community Plan for retail/mixed use. Additionally, the property 
directly to the south at 3125 Blue Lake Dr. is already zoned O-1 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  Approval needed on creek and drainage. 
 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 
4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  



 2 

 
• MOTION  Mr. Visintainer made a motion to recommend approval of 3127 

Blue Lake Dr., 4565 Pine Tree Cir. from Rezoning Vestavia Hills R-1 Vestavia Hills 
B-1.2. Second was by Mr. Goodwin. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as 
follows: 

 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sharp – yes          
Mr. Wolfe – yes   Mr. House – yes     
Mr. Visintainer – yes    Mr. Brooks – yes     
Mr. Larson – yes    Motion carried. 

 
 



Ordinance Number 2606 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2606 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS R-
4 TO VESTAVIA HILLS B-1 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills R-4 (medium 

density residential district) to Vestavia Hills B-1 (neighborhood business district):  

4209 Autumn Lane 
Brent Martina and Tim Coker 

 
More particularly described as: 
 

Legal Description,  Parcel 1:A parcel of land situated in the Southwest 
one-quarter of the Northeast one-quarter of Section 22, Township 18 
South, Range2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama being more particularly 
described as follows:  Commence at the Southeast corner of said quarter-
quarter Section and run in a Westerly direction along the South line 
thereof for a distance of 375.04 feet to a found 2” pipe; thence continue 
along the last described course for a distance of115.91 feet to a found 1” 
pipe at the end of an asphalt drive know as Autumn Lane; thence leaving 
said South line turn an interior angle to the left of 90 degrees 26 minutes 
50 seconds and run in a Northerly direction along the centerline of said 
Autumn Lane for a distance of 318.26 feet to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING of the parcel herein described, said point being the 
Southwest corner of that property described in deed book 1184, page 374 
recorded in the Office of the Judge of Probate, Jefferson County, 
Alabama; thence continue along the last described course for a distance of 
166.27 feet to a set nail in the centerline of said Autumn Lane, said point 
being on the Southern-most right of way Cahaba Heights Road (right of 
way varies), and being the Northwest corner of the property described in 
said deed book 1184, page 374; thence turn an interior angle to the left of 
82 degrees 32 minutes 00 seconds and run in an Easterly direction along 
said right of way for a distance of102.88 feet to a set 5/8 inch capped rebar 
stamped CA-560LS marking the Northeast corner of the property 



Ordinance Number 2606 
Page 2 

 
described in said deed book 1184, page 374; thence leaving said right of 
way turn an interior angle to the left of 99 degrees 00 minutes 18seconds 
and run in a Southerly direction for a distance of 8.66 feet to a found 2 
inch pipe; thence continue along the last described course for a distance of 
145.25 feet to a found capped rebar stamped (JAM) marking the Southeast 
corner of the property described in said deed book 1184, page 374; thence 
turn an interior angle to the left of 87 degrees 56 minutes 47seconds and 
run in a Westerly direction for a distance of 106.14 feet to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING. Said parcel contains 16,643 square feet or 0.38 acres more 
or less. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that said rezoning is conditioned upon the use 

of the property being limited to office use only. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 12th day of October, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2606 
Page 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2606 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 12th day of October, 2015 as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 



 

Ordiinance Number
P
r 2606 
Page 4 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     September 10, 2015 
 

 
• CASE:  P-0915-50 

 
• REQUESTED ACTION:   Request of Rezoning of property from Vestavia Hills R-4 

(single-family residential) to VH B-1 (neighborhood business) for office use 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  4209 Autumn Ln 
 
• APPLICANT/OWNER:  Timothy J. Coker & Brent Martina 

 
• REPRESENTING AGENT:  John Whitson  

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property is located on the corner of Autumn Ln. and 

Cahaba Heights Rd.  Request is to rezone to B-1 for office use. Applicant intends to 
convert and update home on site to meet building code and ADA requirements.  A 
proposed site plan is included depicting ingress/egress, parking, and landscaping. The 
building, parking, and landscaping meet the minimum requirements fo a B-1 zone. 
Lots to the east are zoned B-3 and the lot to the south is zoned R-4. 

 
• CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN:  This property is located in Figure 19 

of the Comprehensive Master Plan in an area designated as Retail/Mixed Use. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.  Several 
new properties have built to the same setbacks citing various “hardships”.  
This property has no unnecessary hardship and was referred instead to seek 
zoning change rather than variance for building.   

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No Recommendation. 
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and request that the 
applicant provide grading and drainage plans to City Engineer for review and 
approval prior to permitting for construction. 

 



 2 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and found no 
problems as proposed. 

 
4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and found no 

problems with development as proposed.  
 

MOTION  Mr. Visintainer made a motion to recommend rezoning approval of 4209 Autumn 
Ln from Vestavia Hills R-4 to VH B-1 with the following condition: 

1. Rezoning limited to office use only.  
Second was by Mr. Burrell. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sharp – yes          
Mr. Wolfe – yes   Mr. House – yes     
Mr. Visintainer – yes    Mr. Brooks – yes     
Mr. Larson – yes    Motion carried. 

 
 



Future Land Use 
1,v,l)cosue) Rcmdennal 

Medaum-Denmav Itecidennal 

MOM  ligh-Dengin Itrsuknrtal 

Rim  Lamed Mixo.1 

IIIIII  Moms] Misad Uae 

"1 
'‘J 

1.1111  Put. nod ()pen Sruce 

Rciail/Nr.ed Use 	 1,14:...1 

• 
COM1111, 	 1.3man 

RIR \11\ (;11 

\- 

r . 

► 	I I 11. ■ 0\ 

Figure 4: Future Land Use Map 

Page 14 



soft News A. sompos. Into IN., 

elsrer°. its  

.0tMitti 	 
itt.,  

.q[Strea  
tts .71,T 

- 153.91 

rrt intApp 

Existing Vegetation 

Shrub t--- 
ono .0014m4. 

8.8„ —I 

_ 
10 0 — -33 	I s•F 

ii 3 
i 7  Mx 

1.01.-_1-c...!&..1ot 	 - 



LANDSCAPE PLAN 

— TREE 

TREE 

4401640eaminci.v4A1 trp.,044.  

42 .  to intersection ---- 

Front: 
- 16 Shrubs and 2 Trees 

Autumn Lane Side: 
- 32 shrubs and 4 Trees 

Buffer: 
- 10' 8 new trees and 16 

shrubs 
East Side (Mason Music) 

sty growth and fence 

..41EA "Net '  

ADA. Wa — Existing Vegetation 

r  

Shrub - 

Fence 

tef.....gr lg.' • 

11 WM 



Ordinance Number 2607 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2607 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS R-
1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS O-1 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills R-1 (low density 

residential district) to Vestavia Hills O-1 (office district):  

3117 and 3121 Blue Lake Drive 
Lots 29 and 30, Topfield Subdivision 

Slate Barganier Holdings, LLC and VGD on Blue Lake, LLC, Owners 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that said rezoning is conditioned upon the 

design of the office building to remain consistent with similar office designs within the 

Blue Lake area. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 12th day of October, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2607 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2607 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 12th day of October, 2015 as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 
 



Ordiinance Number
P
r 2607 
Page 3 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     SEPTEMBER 10, 2015 
 

• CASE:  P-0915-51 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Vestavia Hills R-1 Vestavia Hills O-1 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  3117 & 3121 Blue Lake Dr. 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER: Slate Barganier Holdings, LLC & VGD on Blue Lake, 
LLC 

 
• REPRESNTING AGENT: Brian Harris 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property is on Blue Lake Dr., and one lot away from 

Pine Tree Circle.  Applicant is seeking rezoning to build two office buildings with a 
shared driveway. Each building would be two stories in height and be a minimum of 
5,600 sq. ft. The building setbacks and buffering meet the minimum for an O-1 
zoning. A preliminary landscape plan is attached. 

 
• CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN:  The request is consistent with the 

Cahaba Heights Community Plan for retail/mixed use. Additionally, the property 
directly to the north at 3125 Blue Lake Dr. is already zoned O-1 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  Approval based on drainage and adherence to 
sidewalk masterplan. 

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 
4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  



 2 

 
MOTION  Mr. Burrellmade a motion to recommend rezoning approval of 3117 & 3121 Blue 
Lake Dr. from Vestavia Hills R-1 to VH O-1 with the following condition: 

1. Building design to be consistent with similar office 
designs in the Blue Lake area.  

Second was by Mr. Gilchrist. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sharp – yes          
Mr. Wolfe – yes   Mr. House – yes     
Mr. Visintainer – yes    Mr. Brooks – yes     
Mr. Larson – yes    Motion carried. 

 
 



Future Land Use 
1:72.12L i  I Ara -Ih-non Rrsalcorial 

Irchumilen.a ∎• Ite.akwial 
.op 

I_Nnsted Mixed Cse 

gill  11.1.1 Mined L. 

4111■ 11111 

\ 	) 	\ I \1\ 	 ) 1,„ 

I 	IN 

''' ' ' 	 all ,.; 

,  , _—_,  . 	 .-• 	NIP 

Libcrty 
Park. 

\ 

• ' 	• 
\- 	• 

0•-• 

I I 
...- 

•.../ 	•• \ 	
...,•• 	/ / 
„  . 

-  - -  -c—  -'' ‘ • 	̀̀'N' 	-/ .: 
. 	 --I 

:•-.1 	
\ • 	

,- i 

r 	-• 

•-( 

\ 
• 1,1 	111111 

	

- 	 1 1 

•. 	/ 

/ 

/ 

(  
-1

i I
 1

A
: f

 

I.FRSON (An. \ TN' 

I It 	\ 

11.0  Inattim..1,41 

IIIIII  Parks And l /Two Sruca 

Figure 4: Future Land Use Map 

Page 14 



















































































 

























































































































































































































































































































































































































P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T 

FO
R

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

,
R

E
C

O
R

D
IN

G
P

U
R

P
O

S
E

S
 O

R
IM

P
LE

M
E

N
TA

TI
O

N



 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4764 
 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR UAT INC., D/B/A CAHABA HEIGHTS 
TEXACO; ABID GHANI, EXECUTIVE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves 

the alcohol license for UAT Inc., d/b/a Cahaba Heights Texaco, located at 3101 Cahaba 

Heights Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the sale of 050 - Retail Beer (Off Premises 

Only) and 070 - Retail Table Wine (Off Premises Only); Abid Ghani, executives. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 12th day of October, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 



Exhibit A - Resolution 4764



Exhibit A - Resolution 4764



Exhibit A - Resolution 4764



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4765 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND APPROVED AN AGREEMENT FOR PROJECT 
NUMBER ACAA59495-ATRP(006) ATRIP 37-03-34 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the City enters into an agreement with the State of Alabama acting by and through 

the Alabama Department of Transportation for: 

The resurfacing on CR-113 Rocky Ridge Road) from Lorna Road to CR-97 

(Shades Crest Road).  Length 4.11 miles 

Project Number ACAA59495-ATRP(006) ATRIP 37-03-34; and 

2. A copy of said agreement is marked as “Exhibit A” attached to and incorporated into this 

Resolution Number 4765 as though written fully therein; 

3. That the agreement be executed in the name of the City by its Mayor and City Manager, 

for and on its behalf; and 

4. That the agreement be attested by the City Clerk and the seal of the City affixed thereto; 

and 

5. This Resolution Number 4765 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval; and 

Be it further resolved that upon the completion of the execution of the agreement by all 

parties, that a copy of such agreement be kept on file by the City Clerk and the seal of the City 

affixed. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 12th day of October, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Albert C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, the undersigned qualified and Acting Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a Resolution passed and adopted by 
the City Council of the City named therein, at a regular meeting of such Council held on the 12th 
day of October, 2015 and that such Resolution is on tfile in the City Clerk’s office. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of 
the City on the ______ day of ____________, 2015. 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4765



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4765



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4765



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4765



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4765



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4765



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4765



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4765



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4765



ORDINANCE NUMBER 2608 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE 

AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 

ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, AND AS LAST AMENDED 

SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF DISTRICT ZONING OF 

PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS O-1 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as 

follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of district zoning of 

the following described property from Vestavia Hills R-4 (medium density residential district), 

B-1 with conditions (Neighborhood Business District), B-2 with conditions (General Business 

District), B-1.2 (Neighborhood Mixed Use District), B-1.2 with conditions (Neighborhood 

Mixed Use District), B-2 with conditions (General Business District), INST (Institutional 

District) to Vestavia Hills B-1.2 with the Conditional Use for a 4-story building (Neighborhood 

Mixed Use District):  

4248 Oakview Lane, 4244 Oakview Lane, 

4240 Oakview Lane, 4232 Oakview Lane, 

4325 Dolly Ridge Road, 4321 Dolly Ridge Road, 

4317 Dolly Ridge Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

Johnnie Rogers, John Boone, 

Maude K. Powell, BEC, Inc. (David Bruno), 

Billano Investments, Inc., (Dr. Retna Billano), 

Cahaba Heights Development, LLC (Thornton Hydinger) 

and JFKE, LLC (John Whitson), Owner(s) 

 

More particularly described as follows: 

 

Commence at the Northeast Corner of the Northeast Quarter of the Southwest 

Quarter of Section 22, Township 18 S, Range 2 W (not recovered); thence run N 

89º14’17” W along the north line of said Quarter for a distance of 338.68 feet to a 

nail found on the southeast corner of Lot 24A of a Resurvey of Lots 24, 25, 26, 

and 27 New Merkle Heights J.D. Acton Survey, as recorded in the Office of the 

Judge of Probate for Jefferson County in Plat Book 235 Page 58, said point being 

the POINT OF BEGINNING of the following described parcel: 

 

Thence run N 89º14’17” W along the south line of Lot 24A of a 

Resurvey of Lots 24, 25, 26, and 27 New Merkle Heights J.D. 

Acton Survey and along the north line of said Quarter for a 



distance of 387.5 feet to a point; thence leaving the North line of 

said Quarter run N 00º45’43” E for a distance of 95.57 feet to a 

point; thence run S 88º42’33” E for a distance of 39.08 feet to a 

point; thence run N 00º00’08” W for a distance of 155.50 feet; 

thence run N 39º39’22” E for a  distance of 69.98 feet to a point on 

the south line of Lot 5 Cahaba Oaks Garden Homes Subdivision as 

recorded in the Office of the Judge of Probate for Jefferson County 

in Plat Book 198 Page 26; thence run S 77º30’27” E along the 

south line of Lots 5, 8, and 9 of said Cahaba Oaks Garden Homes 

Subdivision for a distance of 153.75 feet to a point in the center of 

an alley vacated by INST #9812/3420; thence run N 31º06’43” E 

along the center of said vacated alley for a distance of 85.18 feet to 

a point; thence run S 89º12’09” E along the north line of Lot 29 of 

New Merkle Heights J.D. Acton Survey, as recorded in the Office 

of the Judge of Probate for Jefferson County in Plat Book 19 Page 

92 for a distance of 213.16 feet to a point on the northeast corner 

of Lot 29 of said New Merkle Heights J.D. Acton Survey said 

point also being on the Westerly Right-of-Way of Oakview Lane; 

thence run S 09º49’39” W along the Westerly Right-of-Way of 

Oakview Lane for a distance of 291.45 feet to a point; thence run 

N 89º28’33” W Westerly Right-of-Way of Oakview Lane for a 

distance of 12.01 feet to a point on the Easterly line of Lot 24A of 

a Resurvey of Lots 24, 25, 26, and 27 New Merkle Heights J.D. 

Acton Survey; thence run S 24º13’51” W along the Westerly 

Right-of-Way of Oakview Lane for a distance of 31.47 feet to a 

point on the Easterly line of Lot 24A of a Resurvey of Lots 24, 25, 

26, and 27 New Merkle Heights J.D. Acton Survey; thence run S 

45º06’45” W along the Westerly Right-of-Way of Oakview Lane 

for a distance of 42.72 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; said 

parcel containing 135,504 square feet (3.11 acres) more or less 

 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 26
th

 day of October, 2015. 

 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor  

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 



CAHABA HEIGHTS RD

GREENVIEW RD

DO
LL

Y
RID

GE CIR

DOLLY RIDGE DR

HEIGHTS VLG

PRUETT PL

DO
LL

Y R
ID

GE
 LN

OA
KV

IEW
 LN

DO
LLY

RID
GE

RD
MANOR BROOK DR

E A HOLLIS DRE A HOLLIS DR

3113

4429 3112
3109

44254428

3104 3121
31563100 3117

3128 3148314431403136 3152313231164433

3108

4424 31044421

44174420

440544163040
4412

4405
4408

4401 4404

4400 4400

42484328 43253032 42474321 3036 42454324 4244
4321

43204317 4240
42374317

43164313 4232

2713 42284312300130004309
4224 42293005 43083004 2712 27184305 2706

4216
3025 430030173008

4301 42254227
42323016 3028 4200
4224

4221
42202940 3135

4217 31342932

4213
4212 3127

3001 4209
3009

31013019
3142

4401

4220

2701
2707

2722

2729

2723

2700

Subject
Properties

4248 Oakview Lane, 4244 Oakview Lane, 4240 Oakview Lane, 4232 Oakview Lane
4325 Dolly ridge Road, 4321 Dolly Ridge Road, 4317 Dolly Ridge Road

Subject Properties



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     SEPTEMBER 10, 2015 
 

• CASE:  P-0915-52 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning from Vestavia Hills B-1.2, Vestavia Hills Inst-1, 
Vestavia Hills B-1, Vestavia Hills B-2, and Vestavia Hills R-4  to Vestavia Hills B-
1.2 with a Conditional Use for a Four Story Building 

 
•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  Oakview Ln and Dolly Ridge Rd. 

  
• APPLICANT/OWNER: BEC, Inc., John Boone, LLC, Maude K. Powell, and 

Johnnie Rodgers 
 

• REPRESNTING AGENT: Steven Hydinger  
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property directly adjacent to Cahaba Heights   
Elementary.  Applicants are seeking rezoning to continue the dense development 
pastern established in the Cahaba Heights Village amendment and the approval of 
Billano Dermatology. The applicants have submitted an updated master plan for the 
entire project. The plan includes a multi-family/retail mixed-use development 
consisting of 81 units and 15,000 square feet of retail.  

 
The multifamily will be split between two buildings with a pool/common area in the 
middle. The large multi-family building will front the newly created road will face the 
new street and Oakview Ln. The second multi-family building will have frontage 
along Oakview Ln. An additional 13,000 square feet of retail proposed, fronting 
Dolly Ridge Rd.   

 
Retail will be split between two separate buildings as well. The larger 10,000 sq. ft. 2 
story building will front Dolly Ridge Rd. The second retail building will share a wall 
with the multi-family building along the new road and will have residential above. 
 
A regulating plan showing the various building distances to the property lines are 
attached. 
 
Parking is shared throughout the development with parking all on one level. Street 
parking will also be utilized on the new street. A preliminary landscape plan is also 
attached. 
 
A Conditional Use permit is also requested to allow the mixed use building to be four 
stories. The Zoning Ordinance caps building height at 3 stories, with any additional 



 2 

height to go through the CU process. The applicants contend that the slope of the land 
mitigates any potential unsightliness from an additional story. 
 
If zoning is approved, applicant will replat the site. ROW on the corner of Oakview 
Ln. and the new street will also need to be vacated. 

 
• CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN:  The request is consistent with the 

Cahaba Heights Community Plan for mixed use and pedestrian oriented development. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  Will review traffic and access. 
 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 
4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

MOTION  Mr. Visintainer made a motion to recommend approval of Rezoning at Vestavia 
Hills B-1.2, Vestavia Hills Inst-1, Vestavia Hills B-1, Vestavia Hills B-2, and Vestavia Hills R-4 
to Vestavia Hills B-1.2 with a Conditional Use for a Four Story Building. Second was by Mr. 
Wolfe. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – no   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sharp – yes          
Mr. Wolfe – yes   Mr. House – yes     
Mr. Visintainer – yes    Mr. Brooks – yes     
Mr. Larson – no   Motion carried. 

 
 



IC 01.10101 ON.. 01 OM nab un Mt IN MU VIA POLO( WNW= qnivilp MUM 91 MIMI CMOS, B 	 alf.S. 

cTo 

MWRC  ED- %0‘011"TO1W0  1:",::GEL0r14; 

TRAVIS 6 LIMO TURNER 
601 

CO PLOT
OAPS 6

I 	PACE 26 

otiTItc:C4VSPIV 

S 89- 12'09" E 213.36 .  

40 20 	0 40 	so 

SCALE IN FEET 
= 40' 

31.•7' 

'E"E"XtEl Cgro.'", ,STM LOT 

PESUPvE ■ Or 6015 24 25. DO. oo0 27 

"O" '4"101,6"tE  .600.5  235 o'C'E r°5•B 'WO"'  

N 139. 2433" w 
2.0 ,  

01)(6193 (101E12 
DEED BOOR 201511 PACE 652 

o. N 89 .  14'17" W 	 357.35' 

NOT 

6, 	 ••o,/,1 	 as pr. 	 Bounder r. , uoop.oauc. o. POunoneinc Sop•OY 

2 ones shoo. Pereen eve kw 6.62•.0.16/1.l• onOy we oa•e bI ouon gyp ....Ira 

PONT OF BEGINNING 

s 45. 116 45" 
42.72' 

PORT CF 10MENCE1451 
NORTHEAST COWER OF DE 
NORTHEAST OUPRTER a 714 

SOUTHWEST QUARTER 
OF 

 
SECTIONS 

errET412 
MOT RECOVERED) 

EX 1 -RO 

0 

0-6041 

aux. 

wt. met 

R. 	 Not 

P09 15-52//28-22-2-10-17 
Oakview Ln & Dolly Ridge Rd. 
Rezone to VH B 1.2 
Multiple Owners 	VH R- 
4,B2, B  1 & Inst. 1 



P0915-52//28-22-2-10-17 
Oakview Ln & Dolly Ridge Rd. 
Rezone to VH B 1.2 
Multiple Owners 	VH R- 
4,B2, B1 & Inst. 1 

COMMENCE at the Northeast Corner of the Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 22, 

Township 18 S, Range 2 W (not recovered); thence run N 89° 14' 17" W along the North line of said 

Quarter for a distance of 338.68 feet to a nail found on the Southeast Corner of Lot 24A of a Resurvey of 

Lots 24, 25, 26, and 27 New Merkle Heights J.D. Acton Survey, as recorded in the Office of the Judge of 

Probate forJefferson County in Plat Book 235 Page 58, said point being the POINT OF BEGINNING of the 

following described parcel; 

thence run N 89° 14' 17" W along the South Line of Lot 24A of a Resurvey of Lots 24, 25, 26, and 27 New 

Merkle Heights J.D. Acton Survey and along the North line of said Quarter for a distance of 387.35 feet 

to a point; thence leaving the North line of said Quarter run N 00° 45' 43" E for a distance of 95.57 feet 

to a point; thence run S 88° 42' 33" E for a distance of 39.08 feet to a point; thence run N 00° 00' 08" W 

for a distance of 155.50 feet; thence run N 39° 39' 22" E for a distance of 69.98 feet to a point on the 

south line of Lot 5 Cahaba Oaks Garden Homes Subdivision as recorded in the Office of the Judge of 

Probate for Jefferson County in Plat Book 198 Page 26; thence run S 77° 30' 27" E along the South line 

of Lots 5, 8, and 9 of said Cahaba Oaks Garden Homes Subdivision for a distance of 153.75 feet to a point 

in the center of an alley vacated by INST# 9812/3420; thence run N 31° 06' 43" E along the center of 

said vacated alley for a distance of 85.18 feet to a point; thence run 5 89° 12' 09" E along the North line 

of Lot 29 of New Merkle Heights J.D. Acton Survey, as recorded in the Office of the Judge of Probate for 

Jefferson County in Plat Book 19 Page 92 for a distance of 213.16 feet to a point on the Northeast corner 

of Lot 29 of said New Merkle Heights J.D. Acton Survey said point also being on the Westerly Right-of-

Way of Oak View Lane; thence run S 09° 49' 39" W along the Westerly Right-of-Way of Oak View Lane 

for a distance of 291.45 feet to a point; thence run N 89° 28' 33" W Westerly Right-of-Way of Oak View 

Lane for a distance of 12.01 feet to a point on the Easterly line of Lot 24A of a Resurvey of Lots 24, 25, 

26, and 27 New Merkle Heights J.D. Acton Survey; thence run S 24° 13' 51" W along the Westerly Right-

of-Way of Oak View Lane for a distance of 31.47 feet to a point on the Easterly line of Lot 24A of a 

Resurvey of Lots 24, 25, 26, and 27 New Merkle Heights J.D. Acton Survey; thence run 5 45° 06' 45" W 

along the Westerly Right-of-Way of Oak View Lane for a distance of 42.72 feet to the POINT OF 

BEGINNING; 

said parcel containing 135,504 (3.11 acres) more or less 








	2015_1012CC_A
	2015_0928CC_M
	Ordinance 2600
	Resolution 4762
	Ordinance 2602
	Ordinance 2603
	Ordinance 2604
	Ordinance 2605
	Ordinance 2606
	Ordinance 2607
	Resolution 4764
	Resolution 4765
	Ordinance 2608



